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Forester Life Limited
Chairman’s Report

The Year 2020 was dominated by the social and economic fallout of the Covid-19 global health crisis.
The pandemic has had an impact on each one of us, but for the key workers among us the strain has
been considerable. At Foresters UK, our colleagues have risen to the challenge incredibly, ensuring
that excellent customer services continued uninterrupted throughout the year. I thank them for all
their hard work and dedication in supporting the members and customers whom we serve.

Despite the difficult circumstances, the Company achieved much during the year. In particular:

¢ In April, we completed the bulk transfer of the Child Trust Fund (*CTF”) business acquired from
Halifax, a member of the Lloyds Banking Group. This increased the number of CTF plans under
our management by 474,000, making us now one of the largest CTF providers in the UK.

o In September, we successfully launched the new MyPlans for our CTF customers as their
policies started maturing. Consequently we now offer self-serve capabilities supported by
straight-through processing for a range of transactions: CTF customers can do business with
us the way they want to, whenever they want to.

It is a testament to the operational resilience of the business that these key strategic projects were
delivered in a year that presented such significant challenges.

Financially, the Company delivered a very good set of results. Our assets under management are now
£5.2bn (2019: £4.6bn). New business volumes were, unsurprisingly, lower than prior year, mainly
due to restrictions on face-to-face selling activities. However net fund inflows were slightly higher
than prior year, even after excluding the impact of the Halifax CTF transfer. Profits were well ahead
of prior year, with the impact of reserve releases boosting strong underlying earnings derived mainly
from the unit-finked business and excellent investment returns on our surplus funds.

The first of our CTF customers turned 18 on 1 September 2020 and became eligible to access their
savings. To date, around 70% of the funds under management in relation to the matured CTFs have
remained invested with us. We shall continue to build affinity with our new CTF members and
customers, generating awareness of the products we offer and encouraging them to utilise our wide
range of Membership benefits.

We expect the year ahead to be another challenging one, but believe that our financial strength and
strong solvency position will continue to enable us to pursue new opportunities and seek new sources
of profitable growth. As the pandemic unfolds, we shall continue to adapt to the new challenges and
opportunities that emerge, while prioritising the continuing safety and wellbeing of our members,
customers and employees.

Johh Young \

Chairman
31 March 2021
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Forester Life Limited
Strategic Report
The Directors present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Principal activity
Forester Life Limited (the “Company” or “FLL") carries on business in the UK, currently consisting of:
e an open book of unit-linked products such as individual savings accounts and investment
solutions for adults and children;
e a large book of Child Trust Funds ("CTFs”);
» administration of four closed ring fenced funds; ’
e an open book of protection and deferred annuity business.

Business Performance

The Company's operational resilience and financial strength enabled it to deliver a strong set of results
in 2020 despite the significant challenges posed by the Covid-19 pandemic.

Key financial performance indicators are summarised below:

2020 2019

£'m £'m

New Business 48.0 60.1
Net fund flows 618.7 38.2
Assets under management 5,172.6 4,550.5
IFRS total comprehensive income 31.9 22.9

New Business

New business in the year was lower than prior year (2020: £48.0m, 2019: £60.1m) on an Annual
. Premium Equivalent ("APE") basis. APE is the sum of initial premium on new regular sales plus one-
tenth of premiums on new single sales.

Normally, most of the Company’s sales derive from unit-linked products sold through its Field Force.
Sales through this channel ceased during the five months between April and August 2020 when the
Financial Advisers were furloughed. Sales through online and other direct channels charted a strong
growth in 2020, partly making up for the lost Field Force new business.

Net Fund Flows

Net fund flows are made up of contributions and premiums less encashments and claims. Higher net
fund inflows contribute directly to the growth in assets under management which in turn is the key
driver of the Company’s profitability. Strong net fund inflows also indicate good persistency which
provides more certainty of future earnings.

The Company's total net fund inflows in the year were £618 7m, weII above prior year (2019: £38. 2m)
Of this, £586m related to the acquisition of the CTF book from Hahfax a member of the Lloyds Banking
Group. The transaction was completed on 10 April 2020 with the bulk transfer into FLL of ¢.474,000
CTF plans together with their related assets and liabilities. .

Assets Under Management

Assets under management ("AUM") refer to the total market value of investments that the Company
looks after on behalf of its customers. This is a key financial performance measure for the Company
as its main source of income is from annual management fees taken as a percentage of assets under
management.
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Assets under management as at 31 December 2020 were £5,172.6m, an increase of £622.1m
compared to prior year. The acquisition of the Halifax CTF book increased FLL's total assets under
management by £586m as at the transfer-in date of 10 April 2020.

IFRS Total Comprehensive Income

The Company’s profitability is mainly driven by its fee income less operating expenses. The significant
volatility in global equity markets in the first half of 2020 adversely impacted fee income, however
this was mainly offset by lower acquisition costs and savings in ongoing operating expenses. Excluding
one-off items such as reserve assumption updates and a release of tax provision in respect of prior
years, underlying profitability remained in the region of £20m.

Overall, faced with ongoing near-term uncertainty, the business has continued to focus on maintaining
expense discipline and driving profitable growth. As the financial results show, this strategy has proven
to be a successful one.

Covid-19 response

Our priority from the beginning of the outbreak has been the safety and well-being of our employees
and customers. Many Head Office staff have been working from home since March 2020, with around
half of the customer-facing staff and essential support staff working in the office, ensuring excellent
customer service continues uninterrupted. We have adopted government guidelines around making
the workplace Covid-secure and are continuing to monitor the latest advice from local public health
authorities.

The measures put in place by the government to limit transmission of Covid-19 meant our Financial
Advisers were unable to conduct face-to-face visits with customers from mid-March onwards. On 6
April, we took the difficult decision to temporarily furlough the majority of the Financial Advisers. We
received £1.3m in financial support from the UK Government’s Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme to
cover a portion of their wage costs during the furlough period. On 1 September, Financial Advisers
returned to work, offering video appointments as an alternative to face-to-face meetings. The new
“adviser video appointment” sales process allows the Financial Advisers to build affinity with our
customers in a safe environment and has been well received so far.

The full financial impact of Covid-19 on the business is impossible to predict at this stage. Sensitivity
analyses performed have shown that the Company’s solvency position is resilient to significant
stresses on market risk and persistency, its two main risks. We have also considered a range of stress
scenarios to understand the potential outcomes and the corresponding recovery actions available.

Child Trust Fund maturities

The Company’s CTF book started to mature on 1 September 2020 when our first customers turned 18
and became eligible to access their savings. To support this maturity journey, we launched an online
platform providing full self-serve capabilities with straight through processing of full and partial
encashments as well as transfer of funds into Adult ISAs. This was the first significant milestone in
the Company’s vision to create an omni-channel experience where customers can do business with us
in the way they want to. Significant investments in technology and related infrastructure will continue
throughout 2021 and 2022 as the Company seeks to secure its position in an increasingly digitalised
world.

To date, around 70% of funds under management of the matured CTF plans have remained invested
with us. This is significantly above our baseline projected retention rates. We shall continue to build
affinity with the CTF members and customers, engaging with them on financial planning, ethical
investing and our unique Membership proposition.
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Section 172 Statement

In accordance with the requirements of Section 172(1) of Companies Act 2006, this section sets out
how the Directors have discharged their duties to promote the success of the Company, having regard
to the likely long term consequences of any decision as well as the non-financial matters set out below:

Interests of the Company’s employees

Our employees are central to our strategy and purpose. Learning and development is encouraged to
build a culture that promotes talent and fosters high performance. The Company provides support for
various forms of online learning, classroom-style training as well as external study and qualifications.

Management regularly seek feedback from staff either formally through company-wide employee
engagement surveys or informally through one-to-one meetings. Business updates are cascaded via
management, complementing email announcements and staff meetings where employees can hear
from and exchange ideas with the CEO and the wider Executive Team. As many Head Office staff have
been warking from home full time since March 2020, it has become even more important to keep
these communication channels open.

The care and well-being of our employees has always been an overriding priority and this has taken
on even greater significance during the ongoing Covid-19 crisis. In addition to securing health and
- safety at the workplace, we have also ensured mental health provisioning is available to all members
of staff through employee assistance programmes.

Relationships with suppliers, customers and others

The Foresters Financial brand is centred around the mission statement “Helping is who we are”. As a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Independent Order of Foresters, a fraternal benefit society, the
business prides itself on giving back to its members and their local communities. Membership benefits
include access to competitive scholarships, lifelong learning and community grants. Members can also
participate in the governance of their local Branch Councils where leaders are elected through a
democratic process.

In keeplng with our core purpose of giving back to communities, staff are encouraged to participate
in a ‘Day of Caring’, whereby they undertake a full day of paid volunteering for a good cause in their
local community or a charity of their choice. '
The Company recognises a duty of care when the circumstances of some customers warrant more
attention than others. The Company proactively monitors its approach to identifying vulnerable
customers and giving them the help that they need as appropriate. We participate in various industry
focus groups to remain at the forefront of the discussion in this important area.

In managing its relationships with external suppliers, the Company’s third-party risk management
policy establishes risk management principles, practices and minimum standards to be adhered to.
The third-party risk management assessment determines whether existing arrangements are
consistent with overall business strategy and risk tolerances.

Environmental impact

The risks associated with climate change are subject to increasing regulatory, political and investor
focus. Climate change is being addressed through the existing risk framework in line with regulatory
expectations. The main climate change risks for the Company are financial risks arising from the
transition to a low-carbon economy and the secondary impacts of physical risks including lower GDP
growth, higher unemployment and significant changes in asset prices. Stress testing has demonstrated
that the financial impacts are not significant at present. However, if these risks are not appropriately
measured and managed, or if the business model does not adapt to regulatory requirements and
market expectations there could be an adverse impact on business growth, profitability and
competitiveness in the future.



Forester Life Limited -
Maintaining high standards of conduct

As a regulated financial services company, entrusted with the plans of over 1.6 million customers,
maintaining our reputation for the highest standards of business conduct is of paramount importance.
Conduct risk is mitigated through appropriate controls including advice suitability reviews, compliance
monitoring controls and complaints management. All staff are required to sign an annual attestation
to our Code of Ethics and there is rigorous conduct training for Financial Advisers and customer-facing
staff.

The Code of Ethics defines the standards and behaviours expected of the Company’s directors, officers,
employees and contract employees. It provides a framework for ethical decision making in our day-
to-day business, and is supported by policies and mandatory training in anti-corruption and bribery,
whistleblowing, data protection and financial crime. The Code also embodies the values and the
principles we live by, including respect for human rights, enriching the lives of our members and
communities as well as fair treatment of customers and suppliers.

FLL is subject to the Senior Managers and Certification Regime (*SMCR”) which aims to deter
misconduct by improving individual accountability and awareness of conduct issues. The second phase
of the SMCR was completed in 2020. This involved certifying all customer-facing managers and the
entire Field Force, together with the automation of annual certification requirements.

Approach to risk management

Effective risk management is fundamental to the Company as it supports the delivery of the business
plan through enabling fully informed business decisions to be made, capital to be managed efficiently,
value generated for customers to be protected and principal risks to be identified, evaluated and
managed. Details of Company’s Risk Management Framework, Risk Governance and Risk Processes
are set out in the Corporate Governance report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company on both a current and a forward-looking
basis are regularly assessed. These, as well as the actions to mitigate and manage these risk
exposures, are further discussed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

Solvency I1

The Company is well-capitalised on a Solvency II basis. As at 31 December 2020, FLL reported a
Solvency II coverage ratio of 173% (2019: 170%) over its Standard Formula capital
requirement. Note 20 provides further details of the Company’s capital management policy. The
Company has complied with all relevant regulatory requirements throughout the financial year and
remained well above its capital risk appetite tolerances.

Going concern

Having considered the position at the date of the Statement of Financial Position and its results, future
prospects and risk profile, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, management
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

In forming this view the Board considered the following matters:

e The performance of the Company and the future risks and uncertainties it faces as set out in the
Strategic Report.

¢ The quality and expertise of the Company’s staff and management team.
The regulatory solvency position of the Company as at 31 December 2020. Management
continues to focus on ensuring regulatory compliance and holding a suitable capital buffer.



H

Forester Life Limited

19 pandemic on the Company’s key risks. This assessment considered the Company’s 2021 business
plan in light of its recent performance and current market conditions, as well as the results of stress
and scenario testing around the ongoing impact of the pandemic. Based on the assessment of available
evidence, management have concluded that the Company’s balance sheet is strong, and its solvency

position is resilient to capital shocks.

Approved by the Board on 22 March 2021 and sighed on 31 March 2021 on its behalf

E T Allison
Director

Foresters House

2 Cromwell Avenue
Bromley

BR2 9BF
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Directors’ Report

Forester Life Limited
Registered in England & Wales, no. 02997655

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Parent company

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Forester Holdings (Europe) Limited ("FHE"), a company
registered in England & Wales.

FHE is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Independent Order of Foresters (*IOF”), a fraternal benefit
society, incorporated in Canada with limited liability. The Company’s registered address is Foresters
House, 2 Cromwell Avenue, Bromley BR2 9BF, United Kingdom.

Financial instruments

The Company makes extensive use of financial instruments in the ordinary course of its business.
Details of the risk management objectives and policies of the Company in relation to its financial
instruments and information on the risk exposures arising from those instruments are set out in Note
21 to the financial statements.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Company has implemented the reporting of greenhouse gas emissions for the first time for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company applies the methodology set out in the Greenhouse Gas ("GHG"”) Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard to calculate its emissions. According to the GHG Protocol,
emissions-releasing activities are categorised into three groups as follows:

¢ Scope 1 emissions are direct emissions from activities owned or controlled by the Company,
for example gas and oil boilers used in buildings owned by the Company.

e Scope 2 emissions are indirect emissions released into the atmosphere as a consequence of
the Company’s consumption of electricity, heat or cooling.

e Scope 3 emissions are other indirect emissions. Examples include business travel, waste
disposal or emissions released in the distribution of gas, oil and electricity purchased by the
Company.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Company’s greenhouse emissions from material
emissions-releasing activities were as follows:

2020
Energy consumption used to calculate
emissions:
Total energy use in kKWh 623,203
Scope 1 emissions generated from gas and oil 8.4
used in Foresters House (tonnes CO2e) '
Scope 2 emissions from purchased electricity 100.2
(tonnes CO2e) )
Scope 3 emissions from business travel (tonnes 25.5
CO2e) .
Total gross CO2e based on above ‘ 134.2
Intensity ratio (tonnes CO2e per £m of revenue) 1.8

10
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The Company has stepped up its efforts to reduce its carbon footprint by replacing the company cars
with hybrid models, reducing business travel as well as encouraging its customers to accept all
correspondence electronically. We are committed to exploring new initiatives to further reduce our
greenhouse gas emissions.

Employment policies

As a purpose-driven organisation, we believe in strength through diversity and we actively promote a
culture of collaboration, creativity and mutual respect in our everyday workplace. Our commitment to
equal opportunities means our recruitment, training and promotion programme is designed to develop
talent based on merit and ability. We will not knowingly discriminate against individuals on the basis
of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. We do not tolerate any type of discriminatory
behaviour by any of our employees against others.

Political contributions

The Company did not make any political donations or incurred any political expenditure during the
year. )

Directors >

The Directors who held office during the year are listed on page 3.

None of the Directors had any disclosable interest in the ordinary shares of the Company.

According to the Register of Directors’ interests, no rights to subscribe for shares in the Company
were granted to any of the Directors or their immediate families, or exercised by them, during the
year.

Directors’ indemnities

The Directors have the benefit of a qualifying third-party indemnity provision (as defined in Section
234 of the Companies Act 2006). IOF also maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in
respect of its subsidiaries and their Directors.

Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

Each person who is a Director at the date of this report confirms that:

1) so far as each of them is aware, there is no information relevant to the audit of the Company’s
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2020 of which the auditor is unaware;
and

2) each Director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Director to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor
is aware of that information.

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors, KPMG LLP, will be deemed to be
reappointed and will therefore continue in office.

11
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Approved by the Board on 22 March 2021 and signed on 31 March 2021 on its behalf

E T Allison
Director

Foresters House

2 Cromwell Avenue
Bromley

BR2 9BF

12
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance is the system by which companies are directed and controlled. Boards of
Directors are responsible for the governance of their companies. Corporate governance is therefore
about what the Board of a company does and how it sets the values of the company and is to be
distinguished from the day to day operational management of the company by the executives. In line
with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Company ensures business activities are undertaken
competently in the best interests of the Company’s stakeholders, and that Directors and staff always
act with integrity.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Company’s organisational structure and relationship to its parent is clearly defined, with the roles
of Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer clearly differentiated and separate. The
responsibilities of the Board include setting the Company’s strategic aims, providing the leadership to
put them into effect, supervising the management of the business and reporting on their stewardship.
The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
implementing strategy and managing the Company through an executive team,

Board Committees
UK Audit and Compliance Committee

The Committee’s terms of reference are set by the Board. The Committee is drawn from the
independent Non-Executive Directors that sit on the FLL Board of Directors and at least one member
has recent relevant financial experience. The membership of the Committee, as at the end of the last
meeting held during the year, was as follows:

D G Robinson (Chair)
J T Young

The Audit and Compliance Committee normally meets at least four times a year to help the Board fulfil
its responsibilities in respect of:
+ Financial Reporting including any regulatory financial reports;
Compliance function;
Systems of internal control;
Internal Audit function; and
Assessment of reports from the External Auditors.

UK Risk and Investment Committee

The Risk and Investment Committee, on behalf of the Board of the UK Company, is responsible for:
+ Investment strategies and performance monitoring;
. Risk management practices; and
»  Capital management.

The Committee normally meets at least four times each year to provide input to the quarterly UK
Companies’ Board meetings. In doing so, it provides regular reports to the respective Boards on its
activities together with accompanying recommendations for action as appropriate.

The membership of the Committee, is as follows:
M Christophers (Chair)

E T Allison

R E Lamoureux

D G Robinson

J T Young

13
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With-Profits Fund Advisory Panels

As the Company manages closed With-Profits Funds it has established With-Profits Advisory Panels.
Each Panel acts in an advisory capacity to inform decision-making by the Board in relation to the
management of that fund. Each Panel acts in accordance with its own terms of reference, regulations
affecting the management of with-profits business and in particular the fund’s Principles and Practices
of Financial Management (“"PPFM"), '

Chairman’s independence
An independent chairman has been in place since October 2017.
Review ovf the Board’s performance

The Board reviews its performance by discussion at the end of each Board meeting and periodically
by using a questionnaire. The results of an external assessment were presented to the Board in Q4
2019 and the findings were discussed and acted upon where appropriate. The Board ensures it has a
balance of required skills and experience in relation to the size and complexity of the UK operation.

Annual re-election of Directors

Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for specific terms, or subject to re-election, but all
appointments are reviewed annually by the Governance Committee of IOF. These arrangements are
considered appropriate for a wholly owned subsidiary.

Relations with members

IOF is a fraternal benefit society that provides financial services products and unique benefits to its
members and their families. Through the member-governed Branch network, members are provided
with opportunities to organise and participate in local volunteer activities and family-focused events.
The IOF annual report provides details of the year’s activities as well as the results of the business.

Risk Management

Risk management is integral to FLL’s business, and key to FLL's success. The risks inherent to our
core business of asset management and the risks associated with life, health and protection business
are accepted risks. Operational risks- are managed through a robust and proportional control
environment. The profile of our risks is also subject to external factors, such as the impacts of the
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the impact of Brexit on UK growth and employment, climate change
considerations and the ever present risks arising from potential cybercrime. In addition, there
continues to be a focus on the risks arising from the execution of FLL’s digital transformation
programme.

Risk Management Framework

Risk management is embedded through the Risk Management Framework comprising governance
systems, the risk appetite framework, risk management policies, processes, tools, and reporting. The
Risk Management Framework is designed to identify, measure, manage, monitor, and report
significant risks to the achievement of the company’s business objectives. The risk function continues
to develop and maintain the risk framework on behalf of the Board.

The key objectives of risk management are to:

« Support the Company'’s strategy and make sure that risks taken are within risk appetite limits.

+ Influence decision-making through the provision of accurate, timely and relevant risk
information.

« Improved use and allocation of capital through better understanding of the risk profile across
risk categories.

+ Contribute to a reduction in loss events through greater capability, stronger lines of defence
and improved control activities.

14
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+ Encourage a culture of openness and transparency to facilitate risk and event management.
» Provide a universal view and understanding of risk across the business.

The Risk Management Framework is integrated with the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment ("ORSA").
The ORSA is both a set of processes and a report which considers the risks arising from the agreed
strategic priorities, the Company’s appetite for these risks and the management of them, how much
capital is needed to protect the business against those risks and how resilient the business model is
under stressed conditions. This analysis involves a forward-looking assessment of the risk and
solvency requirements of the Company over the next three years.

Risk Governance

The Risk and Investment Committee is made up of the Board Directors, although other members of
IOF’'s and FLL's Executive Committee are invited to attend. The Risk and Investment Committee is
responsible for advising the Board on FLL's overall risk appetite and risk strategy, advising the Board
on the current and potential risk exposures of the Company, reviewing and approving the risk
management framework and monitoring its effectiveness.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Company adopts a “three lines of defence” model, such that risk management is acknowledged
to be the responsibility of everyone within the UK Company.

The first line of defence is management control. Operational managers own and manage risks. They
also are responsible for implementing corrective actions to address process and control deficiencies.
The first line is responsible for applying the risk framework and for managing risks with the agreed
risk appetite and in compliance with the policy framework.

The second line comprising risk and compliance functions, is responsible for advising the Board on its
risk appetite and supporting the business in its application as applicable; continuing to develop the
risk management framework for agreement by the Board which the first line uses to discharge its
responsibilities; and provision of oversight, challenge and support to the first line on its management
of risks. :

The third line is internal audit, which is responsible for providing independent assurance over the
adequacy and effectiveness of the design and implementation of the Company’s governance, risk and
control framework. '

Risk appetite

Risk appetite is used by the executive team to ensure that the business is run in accordance with the
Board’'s expectations. The Company has formally established and communicated its risk appetite
through-its risk appetite framework.

The Board is responsible for setting risk appetite which outlines the amount and type of risk that the
Company is willing to take to meet its strategic objectives. Risk appetite is recommended to the Board
by the Risk and Investment Committee. This Committee monitors the principal risks that could
threaten the Company’s business model, future performance and solvency position and oversees the
operation and effectiveness of the risk management framework on behalf of the Board; this includes
a suite of risk policies that cover the full range of risks to which the Company is exposed.

Risk appetite is used to ensure that the Company does not take on more risk than the capital base
allows. One of the key risk appetite statements relates to maintaining an appropriate capital buffer to
meet the internal capital target. To avoid risk appetite being breached, tolerances and limits have
been established. These are trigger points indicating when action should be taken to bring the
Company back within risk appetite. All risk appetites and limits are well within risk capacity.

15
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Risk processes

The processes used to identify, measure, manage, monitor, and report risks are designed to enable
risk-based decision-making and effective day-to-day risk management.

ORSA

The Company complies with Solvency II requirements using the standard formula to calculate its
solvency capital requirement. In addition the Company performs its own risk and solvency assessment
which is defined as the entirety of the processes and procedures employed to identify, assess, monitor,
manage, and report the short and long term risks the Company faces or may face and to ensure that
its appetite for these risks is in line with its capital and commercial aspirations. This includes the
Forward-Looking Assessment of Own Risks which considers the risks to which the successful
implementation of the business plan is exposed. Stress and scenario testing are used to assess the
potential impact of risks under stress on finances and on capital requirements. Depending on the
outcome appropriate management actions are developed to mitigate the position. The ORSA is
therefore integral to Board oversight of business planning and capital management related processes
within the Company. Formal ORSA reporting takes place on an annual basis and is a key part of the
strategic planning cycle.

Directors’ Remuneration Report
This section of the report sets out the Company’s policy on Directors’ remuneration.
Executive Director

The Company’s policy is to ensure that total remuneration of the Executive Director is competitive
with that of comparable organisations in the financial sector. As far as practicable the policy aims to
provide a strong link between pay and performance without encouraging inappropriate risk taking.

The Executive Director’'s remuneration includes the following:

+ Basic salary - this is subject to annual review.

+ Annual bonus scheme - the Company has an incentive plan open to all permanent members
of staff based on key business targets. Assessment of performance against targets is made in
February.

+ Long-term incentive plan - IOF operates a long-term incentive plan open to senior executives
of the Company. Payments are made annually based on an assessment of performance over 3
years.

+ Pension scheme membership ~ the Executive Director is a member of the Forester Group
Employee Pension Plan, a defined contribution scheme open to all permanent employees.

+ Benefits in kind - the Executive Director is provided with a company car, private medical
insurance, permanent heaith insurance and an expense allowance.

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration

1

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is provided below. This is audited information.

Non-Executive Directors 2020 2019

£'000 £'000
M Christophers 40 40
D G Robinson 40 40
J Young 60 60
R E Lamoureux 40 40

The numbers above are on an accrual basis and do not include associated Value Added Taxes.

16
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report,
the Directors’ Report and the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law they have elected to prepare financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union (‘EU’) and applicable law.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss for
that period. In preparing each of these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e “make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
+ state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparatlon and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

17



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTTO THE MEMBERS OF
FORESTER LIFELIMITED

1 Our opinionis unmodified

Ve have audited the financial statements ofFo; rester Life Limited {“the Company”) farthe year ended
3 Decembew 2020 vhich mmpnse the Statement of Caomprehensive Income, Statementof Finandd
Pﬁo_smon Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes, inclhuding
the accountingpoficies in note 1.

In: onr oplmcn th efnan cial stafements:

» giveatrueand falrmew oithe stale of Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and ofits
profitforthe year) th en ended;

» havebeen p«mperly,prepared i aac:cerdanoewm m‘lemanonal accounn ng standards in confonrmity
vath the requirements of the Companies Act 2008; and. ‘

»  have been prepared in accerdance with therequirements cithe Campanies Aot 2006

Bas;s.fq;roﬁinm

We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards on Audiding (UK) ("1SAs (UK}
and applicable law. Qurresponshbilities are described below. We believe thatthe auditevidencewe
have gbtained is a suificient and appropriate basis for our opinion, Our audit opinion is consistent
with our reportto the swdit committes..

We were ﬁrs'ﬁap\pum’ted as awditor by the directors.on 28 June 1998, The period oftotal.

unin berrupted engagementis for the 26 fin anmal years ended 31 Decamber 2020. We have fulSlted.
owethical responsibilties.under, and we remain |ndeg>endentofm200mpan)r in accordance with,
UK. eah ical raquiremenis in: cludmguth eFRC Eihical Standard as zpplied to publicintesestentities. .
Ho rion-auditservices prohibited by that standard wefe provided.

Materiality: financial £2 4 million {2018: £2_1 million}

statements as a whole 2% (20i2: 2% ofCompany net assels

Key audit matters vs 209
Recuring risks Valuation of policyholder liabilities >

. 2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of matenal misstatement

Key audit matters are thosematiers th at in o professnonaﬂjud gement, wers cfmost significance in
the audit of the financial sratements and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement: ¢whether or notdueto fraud}iden tified by s, in cludmg those:which had the greafest
effect onthe o'.'efall audit skategy; the alloeation of resources in the sudit; and directing the efforts
of the engagemem tsam We summarise’ belaw the key audit matters, unchanged from 2019, &
decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, mgeth er with aur key
audit pracedures to address those maiters and, as required for public interest entities, our results
from those procedures. These matters were addressed, and our resulis are based on procedures
undertaken, in the context of, and solady for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements asa
wihole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and consaguanty are incid ental to that apinion, and we
do notprovide a separate opinionon these matters.
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Valuation. 6{?':p-ro{lic§¢hoiﬂd§en= liab

es. {E44Bm, 2019 £502m].

The risk coimpared to the prio! ry garis umchan ged
RJer bpage 29 to 33 (am:ounfmg poﬁ:ﬂ a;:dpages 39‘&: ?Wﬁmmvef d:sc!o.sm%}

The Oompan ¥ hass 5|g n%vcant
policyholder | iabiliies representing
088% -ofthe Company’s total liabilites.
OfF these £408m i5 in respectotwith--
iprofits liabilites and these are set
equal tothe fund value as the entire
amount of the fund will be distiibuted,
and £37m is in respect of non-prodit
insurance liabiljties: '

‘Only non-profit liabikies ihwaiite»
material subjective judgements.

Subjective valuation:

The non-prefitinsurance liabilties are
£37m (8% of the insurance contract
liabiliies) and the determination of
these involves significantjudgement
overuncertain future oustcames.

Operaing snd economic assumpions:
and secfor experence

Management is required fo use
judgmentin the selection ofkey
assumptions covering both operafing
assumptions and cenm necong: rmc
assumptions.

The key operating assumptions
include mortality and maintenance
expenses. Mortality refers to rates of
'deatfv om protection policies an;d rates
iof survival o n-ann, ity polrmes. v

Igriality requires a high degréeof
jud gementdee to'the numker of
factors which may influence mortality
‘experience. Thesa Factors ini clude
Cﬂmpany s own experience and
management's and industy expected
leyvels of future rates of morility
imprevementand other external

faciors arising from. . developments in
the market

Expenses assumplions reguire
significantjudgment Expenses
includes expected tevel offuture
expenses based on theexpected
future cosis for administering the’
underlying polcies.

Gompletensss and sccwvacy of data
hanagernent uses aciuarial models to
caledate policyhokder liakilites. These
is a risk thatthe modellingdoes not:
achzally and appropriately reflectthe

We used c-ur oV actuanaﬂ spremailsis ta assnstus in

P erburrmnxg Qur. procedmes in relation'to the] | ud g@menz?s
BRErc 5:ed in theseareas: Qur pro cedures in clud Ed

Conirol desvgnf

We tested the designand implemeniation ofkey contols .
ouemmag:emenfs valuation processes.

We performed th edxeral Ied tests below rather than

- seeking to rety on the Company's controls because our

knowtedge ofthe related IT controlsindicated th atwe
would not be able to obtain therequired evidenceio

“support refiance on controls,

Methodeiogy choice

Weé have assessed the: mdh 0 dologyfm sel. Eatmg
assumptions. Thisinduwded:

- !E"vaﬂua‘fmg theandysis ofthemovemenis in
insurance contractliabilties during the year,
including consderation ofwihetherthe
movements were in line with, the methodology
and assumphons adopted duri ngmeyea: )

- Applyingour: understandng ofdevelo:pmm‘ts in
ihe business and theneed for and impact of
changes in methodology on this; and

- Comparing themethodolegyto cur
expectations derived Fommarketexperience.

Historical comparnisons:

Eualuated the mortality base asswnpﬁo nswsed i m e

ucalwlanan ofnn surancecontract i abifities by COmpanng

to the Company's histericmortlity experience. This
included an assessmentoftheimpact of COVID- 9.

Benchmarking assumpiions and. sector expamence:

We have assessad assumptions based on
benchmarking and sectorexperience. This induded:

- Ewaluating the appropriateness ofthe
ealibration ofthe Confinucus Mortality
‘Investigation {'CMI"} Medel {the CMI Bureaw
releases |ndustry widemortality Eblesy,
adopted based on the analysis ofthe
dla'ractensws, ofthe pollcyhoiderlp opulation
‘and achual morality experience.

- Assessing whetherhe expenseassumptions
reflect the expected fiture costs of ‘
administering the underlying policies by
considering theexpecied fulwelevel of
expenseinflation and analysing the
appropristeness offorecast budgets.




medel specificationsand farthe - Utk |smg the sesults of KPMG benchmarkin g of

productfeatures due to incorrectof assumpnon 5 G actuarial market practice to
incomplete datainpuiinto the model informourchallenge ofmanapement's

and . orunauthorised oremroneous assumplions in some ofthe areas noted abowve.
changesto themodels. '

Estmafion uncerfainly Application of the methodolegy

The effect of these matters is that, as - Tesiing thatchanges to the actuarial model
part of qur risk assessment, we from theprior year have been approprately
defermined that the valuation of revievied and approved. As partoiassessing
pelicyholder liabiléies has ahigh the approprizteness ofthe changes madein
degree of estimation tncertainty, with thé madel, KPMG considered the expectation
a potentiadrange ofreasonable of the financial impact oithe changes madeto
outcomes greater fian ourmateriality the madel during the year.

farthe financial statements as a oL
whole, and possiblemanyfimes that ~ Assessing Transparency
amount.

- Considesingwhether the disclosures invelation
to the assumpticns used in the calculation of
valuation of pelicyhold er liabiliies are compliant
with the relevantaccounti ng requirements and
approprisiely represent the sen sitivities of
these assumpticns to 2iternative scenarios and
inputs.

Completeness and accuracy of data
Testing the policyhclder databy recenciling the
underlying sowce daiaivith the dala inpintused in the

model to assess the daia'is complete.

Totest accuracy ofthe data we recenciled asample of
poligies to source policy documents.

Ourresults

— We found the resulung estimateof the valuation of
non-partcipatinginsurance contract liabildes to be
acceptable {2[]19 result acceptaue}

3 Our application of matenality and an overview of the scope of ouraudit

Materiaity for the Company financid statements as a whole was set.at £2.4m (2012 £2.1m},
:determined with reference to a benchmark of Company Net Assets, consistantwith 2019 ofwhich it
represents 2% [2048: 2%). '

We consider the Company’s netassets to be the most appropriate benchmark as it represents fhe
residualinterestthat can be ascribed to shareholders afier assets and corresponding lizbilties have
been accounted for. We compared ourym:tenallty agalnstotherreleuant benchmarks, such as. totd
‘assets, totil revenue and profit beiore tax 1D Ensure! the matala!n‘y selected was’ a.ppropna:e‘o rouw
andit.

In: line with our audit methodology, our procedires. on individeal account balances and disciosures,
wiere performed to a lowerthreshold. performance materiality, 5o as o reduteto an acceptable level
therisk thatindividually immatesial misstatzments in individual accountbalances add up to amaterid
ameount.acress thefinancial stalements as a whole.

Performance materiality was set at 73% (2010 75%) of materiality forthe financial statements as a
whale, wh:ch equates to £1.8m (3019: £1.6m) forthe Company.

\We. applied this percantme in owr determination of performance materiality because we did not-
(d entify anyfactors indicating an. elevated level omsJL
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We agre=d to report to the Audit Commitize any corrected or uncorrected identifed misstatements
exceeding £0.1m {2018: £0.1m}, in addition io other identfied misstatements thatwarrantad reporting
on qualitative grounds.”

4 Going concem

The directors have preparedthe financil statements an'the geing concern basis a5 they donotinind
e liquidate the Company orto cease its operations, and as they have concluded thatthe Compamy's
financizl position means tat this is reaistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant d cubt over its ability to continue as a going concem for
at least a year fromthe date of approval ofthefinancial statements {"the going concem period ).

We used ow knovdedge ofthe Company, its indusiry, and the general economic environment &
which it operates to idenfify the interent risks io its business model and analysed how those risks:
might sifect the Company's financial resources ar ability fo coniinue operations over the going
concern period. The risks that were considered most likely to adversely affect the companys
available financial resonrces overthis periodwers:

« 23 significant d!etefioraifm' in langevity experience, polenfially cauwsed by market wide
event(s};

« adeterioration in the valuation ofthe Cor m;pan y s muestmenis' and

«  Seversly adverse policylwlder lapseor claims experience.

We also considered less predictable but reslistic second erder impacts, such as failure of
counterparties who have ransactions with the Company {such as banks} to meet commiiments ihat
could give risk to'anegative impaci on the Company's financialposition.

We considered whetherth eserisks could plausibly aifect the liquidity in thegoing concem period by
assessing the Directors"sensitiviies over the level of available finandia resources indicated by fre
Company’s financial forecasts taking sccournt of severe, but plausible adverse effects thatcould arse
from these risks individually and collectively.

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in n ate 1to the financial stafzments gives a
full and accurate descsiption ofthe Directers’ assessmentofgoin gooncem, incheding the identied

risks and relaied sensitivities.

Qur conclusions based on thiswork:

+ we consider that the directors” use of the going concem basis. of accounting in the prepardion
of thefinancial statements is appropriaie;

+ we have notidentified, and concur with the directors” assessment thatihere is not, a raterial
uncerfainty refated to events or condticns that; indiidually or collectively, may cast signibcant
doubton the Company’s sbility to continue as.a going concern far the goingcancernperiod; and

» wve found thegoingconcemdisdosurein note 1 tobe acceptable.

However, as we cannotpredlet all fubure events or conditions and as: subsequent events may resuft -
in outcomes thatare inconsistent with jud gemenis that were reasonable at the ime they weye made,
the above conclusions.arenota guarantee that the Company will continie in operaticn.

3 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations. — ability to debect
Identiiying and responding to risks of maferial misstafement due to fraud

Te identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks™) we assessed ewvents or
conditions thatco: uki indicate an: incentue m pmssure to commiit, fraud or provide an oppartunity ©
commitiraud. Our risk assessment procedurss. included:

+  Enquiring of directors, the zuditcommitfes, internal awdit and inspection of'poéli}cy"d,‘ocumc-niiaim
as io the Company's high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud |, inchding
the internal audit function, and the Company’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as. whether
they have knowladge ofany actual, suspected or alleged frawd.

+ Reading Board, fAudit Committee minutes.

+» Consideringrermusneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management.



We communicated identified fraud risks thromghout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications offraud through outthe audit. .

As required by awditing standards, and taking into account owr overall knovdedge 6f the contol
environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management overide of coantrols, in
particular the risk that management may be-in a; posmon o make inappropriate accounting enties

and the risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements such as the waluation of poliosholder

lizbilities and the valuation ofdefined benefitobligations.

Cn this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related o revenue recogaition because there s
limited management judgement inwalved in the valuation and recognition of all material revenue
sireams..

We alsoidentified frawd risks refated to fievaluation of policyhalder Hiabilfies and valuation of defried
benefit obligations in response o the required significantjud gement over uncertain future outcomes.

Faurther detail in respect ofthe valuation of policyhotder liabiktiesis st outin the aardit response ©
the risks associated with this key awdit matier in section 2 ofthis report.

We-also performed procedures includ"ng'

. lden‘ufymg joumal entries to test based on ns&c cmtena and co: mparsng theidentfied eniries
) to” “supporting documemanon These. included, ©&ut were not lirmited
to; Jouma&sumpaoimg cash balaﬂees Lhat were |den‘nﬁeﬁ as unusual or un expectnd inouw
risk assessmentprocedures.’
‘s Ewaluatingthe business purposeof signficantunusual transactions.
*  Assessing significant accounting estimates {or bias.

Identifying and responding fo risks of material missiafemenf due fo non-compfiznce wih aws and
reguiatons '

We identified areas of laws and regulations hat coudd reasonably be expected to have 2 material
efiect on the financial statements from. our general commercial and sector experience, through
discission with the directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and fom
inspection ofthe Company's regulatory and legal corespondence and discussed with the direcors
and other managemsnt the policies and procedures reg. arding compliance with laws and
regulatiens.

#s the Companyis. regul ated, our assessment of nsks involwed gaining an understanding of the
c:amrol»engnmnment|nc:‘xud|mgthe entity's procedures for complying with regulatery requirements.

We communicated identified laws and regulations mrox@lout our feam and remained alert o any
indications wunonmmphancemmmomiheaudmt

The potential effectofthese laws and regulations onthefinancial statements varies censidesably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements
including finan cial reporting legisktion (including related companies legislation), distributable profs
legislafion taxation legistation, and pension legiclation and vie assessed the extent of compliance
with these lars and regulations as partofo ur procedwes on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regudations whers the consequences of
nen-compliance could havea material effect an amaunts or disclosures in the financial statements,
for inskance thwough the impesition of fines or liigation or the loss of the Company's license
operate. We ideniified the follewing aréas as these most likely fo have such’an efisct hiealih and
safety, anti- Imber‘;pr employment law, regulatory capital and Irqmdny and certain aspects of company
legistation recognising the financial and regulated nature of the Company’s activities and its fegd
form. Audifing standard's limit the required awdit precedures to idenfify non-campliance with these
laws and regulations to enquiry ofthedirectors and othermanagementand mspﬂohon ofregulabory
and legal correspondenoe ifany. Thereforeifa breada ofoperational reguiations is notdisclosed b
RS QT ewdemfromfeleuamconespc«nd ence, an aud it vaill notdetecttna‘t breach.

(]
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Context of the abiity of fhe audF o defect fraud or bresches of kaw or regufation

Gwing fo the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have
detected some material misstalements in the financial statements, even though we have properdy
planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further
removed non-compliznce with laws and regulations is fromihe events and transactions reﬂa:-cfed w
the financia statements, the less likely the inherenty Imm‘red proceduges reqmrad by audnﬁm
standards woudd identify it

In.addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may
invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internd
contrals. Qurauditprocedwes sre designed to detect material misstatement. We are notirespons&:&a
for preventing non-comphancernrﬁ'awd and cannct be expec»‘fed io detect. non-complmce with df
laws and regulations.

& We have nothing to report on the other information in the Annual Report,

The direciors are responsitle for the :5iraﬁgi‘f¢ report and 'Ehe;d’:ii'»éctms’ report. Ouropinion anﬁbe
financial statemnerits does noteover thosereponts and we do not express an auditopinienthereon:

Our respansibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing s, consider
whether, based on eurfinancial statements audit work, the informalicn thersinis materially misstai=d
orinconsistent with the financial statements orouraudit knowledge. Based solely on thatwork:

» we havenotidentified material misstatements in those reports;

+ inouropiniontheinformalion givenin the sirategicreport and the directors’ repoit for ifre financd
year is censisientwith the financial statements; and

» ‘inouropinion thosereports havebeen prepared in accord ancewith the Companies Act 2008.

7 We have nothing to report on. the other matters ‘on.which we are-fequired to report by
exception’ ' k

Underthe Companies Act 2008, we are required fo reportto youif, in owropinion:

+» adequate. accouniing records have not been kept, or refums adequate for our audlt have not
been received frombran: ches notvisited: by ws;or

» the financial statements are notin agreement with the accounfingrecornds and retwns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remun.eration specified by law are notmade; or ’
ve have notreceived all the information dnd explanalions we require forour audit.

We have nothing to reportin these respecis.
& Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained morefullyin theirstatemant set out on page 10, the dlreeﬁorsare respensiblefor: the
preparation of the financial stalements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view;
sach intermal condrol as they determineis, necessary fo enabie the: preparatlom offinancial slatemenls
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Compamys
ahility to continue a5 a going concem, dischsing; as applicable, matiers refated to going concem;

and using the going concemnbasis ofaccountinguniess they eitfier intend o liguidate the Company
orio caase gperations, or haveno realistic-alfernativebutto do so.

Auditor's msp-onsibi!iﬁes

Gur abjectives are to cbiain reasonable assarance sbout whether the financial staternents as a
wiholeare free from materia misstatement, whether due to Faud er errer, and to issase ouropinion
in an auditor's report. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but does notguarantee
thatan audit conducted in accordance with 154s (UK} will always detect a material misstatement
wihen it exists. Misstatements can aisefrom fraud or ermorand are considered material if,
individualéyorin aggregafe, they could reasonably beexpecied to influencethe economic.decisions.
of users taken on the basis oithe financial staterents.

A fuller description ofour respansibilites is provided on the FRC's website at
wiww frc.ong . ukfaudito rsresponsifites.
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S The purpose of our audit wark and to whom we owe cur responsibilities

This reportis made solelyto the Company's mambers, as a body.in accordance with Chapter 3 of.
Part 16 cf the Companies Act 2008. Cur auditwork has been undertaken so that we might state b
the Company's members those matiers we are required to state to them in an‘auditor's report awd
. farno other, puIpose. To thefullestexientpermitted bylaw, we-do notacceptorassume responsibéity
to a.nyone‘omermam the Company and the Company's members, as a body, forour ‘audit wark, for
this repori, orfor the opinions’ wiehaveformed.

‘Sﬁn ZJ |

,Ben Pﬂ\estley {Senlor Statutm'y Audﬁmﬂ
« far and an behalf'of KPHIG:LLP, Statutorry Auditor,
Chattared Accountanfs

45 Canada Square

Canary Wharf
Lomdon:

E14 561

<31 March 2021



Forester Life Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income -

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Revenue

Gross written premiums
Ceded premiums

Net Written Premiums

Fee income from investment business

Investment income
Total Revenue

Policyholder benefits and expenses
Gross policyholder benefits and payments
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities

Ceded change in insurance contract liabilities
Change in investment contract liabilities

Operating expenses

Total policyholder benefits and expenses
Net income before tax

Income tax (credit) / expense

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income

Amounts that may subsequently be reclassified

to profit or loss:
Net unrealised gains on available-for-sale
assets

Amounts that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension
obligation

Total comprehensive income

The accompanying notes on pages 29 to 70 form part of these financial statements.

Note

12

14
14
15

12

25

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
18,803 22,699
(369) (638)
18,434 22,061
55,173 52,016
67,333 571,155
140,940 645,232
77,660 89,911
(56,371) (31,598)
917 881
52,021 503,026
74,227 562,220
36,521 55,113
110,748 617,333
30,192 27,899
(1,897) 11,049
32,089 16,850
425 4,135
(642) 1,865
(217) 6,000

~ 31,872 22,850




Forester Life Limited

Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2020

Assets

Intangible assets

Investment property
Investment in subsidiaries
Deferred tax asset

Financial investments
Insurance and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities
Investment contract liabilities
Unit-linked

Non-linked

Employee benefit obligation
Deferred tax liability
Current tax liability

Benefits payable

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Called up share capital
Capital contribution
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Notes

10
11

12
13

14

15
16

18

19

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
26,616 13,916
5,250 5,420
4,784 7,438
5,128,926 4,474,238
22,313 24,343
48,630 81,028
5,236,519 4,606,383
445,931 502,302
4,549,179 3,871,045
60,164 61,581
3,359 4,228
3,465 5,432
2,140 10,039
20,333 17,729
10,323 14,274
5,094,894 4,486,630
68,500 68,500
24,189 24,189
48,354 26,265
582 799
141,625 119,753
5,236,519 4,606,383

Approved by the Board on 22 March 2021 and signed on 31 March 2021 on its behalf

The accompanying notes on pages 29 to 70 form part of these financial statements.

E T Allison
Director
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Forester Life Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended
31 December 2020

Balance, beginning of yeai'

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid

Balance, end of year

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Balance, beginning of year

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Dividends paid

Balance, end of year

Share Capital Retained Accumulated Total
Capital Contribution Earnings OCI

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

68,500 24,189 26,265 799 119,753

- - 32,089 - 32,089

- - - (217) (217)

- - 32,089 (217) 31,872

- - (10,000) - (10,000)

68,500 24,189 48,354 582 141,625

Share Capital Retained Accumulated Total
Capital Contribution Earnings OCI

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

68,500 24,189 19,415 (5,201) 106,903

_ ) 16,850 - 16,850

_ ) ) 6,000 6,000

. ) 16,850 6,000 22,850

_ _ (10,000) - (10,000)

68,500 24,189 26,265 799 119,753

The accompanying notes on pages 29 to 70 form part of these financial statements.
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Forester Life Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Change in value of investment property
Financial income
Taxation

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables

Net movement in investment contracts

Decrease in provisions and employee benefits

Tax paid
Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases

Sales

Interest received

Dividends paid

Acquisition of intangible assets

Net cash from investing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
32,089 16,850
2,300 300

) 18,976

170 280
(26,654) (416,641)
(1,897) 11,049
6,008 (369,070)
2,030 (4,604)
(1,347) (27,927)
676,717 559,041
(57,923) (33,089)
619,477 493,421
(6,509) (3,920)
618,976 120,431
(2,464,257) (1,553,211)
1,822,452 1,450,009
15,431 15,409
(10,000) (10,000)
(15,000) (859)
(651,374) (98,652)
(32,398) 21,779
81,028 59,249
48,630 81,028

All cash and cash equivalents comprised cash at bank and overnight deposits.

The accompanying notes on pages 29 to 70 form part of these financial statements.
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Forester Life Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The
accounting policies have been applied consistently to comparative periods presented in these
statements, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of Presentation
a) Statement of Compliance

Forester Life Limited (registered number 02997655) is a company incorporated in England and Wales
.and is resident for tax purposes in the United Kingdom. The Company’s registered address is Foresters
House, 2 Cromwell Avenue, Bromley BR2 9BF, United Kingdom.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 represent the separate financial statements of the Company only. As a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Independent Order of Foresters, the Company has taken advantage of the
exemption under Section 401 of Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to produce consolidated
financial statements. Refer to Note 26 for further information.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in line with the going concern
assessment presented in- the Strategic Report. In performing the going concern assessment, the
Directors have considered an impact of the Covid-19 pandemic including the impact on sales
performance, investment returns as well as fee revenue for at least the next 12 months from the date
of signing. The results of stress and scenario testing performed have also demonstrated that the
Company is resilient to capital shocks in respect of its key risks. This view has been further supported
by the Company’s Own Risk and Solvency Assessment.

Comparatives

For the year ended 31 December 2019, FLL presented consolidated financial statements for the Group
comprising FLL as the parent company and its subsidiaries.

During 2019, following a share capital reduction of FLL's subsidiary undertaking, Forester Investments
Limited (“FIL"), the carrying value of FLL's subsidiary investment was impaired to £1 reflecting the net
book value of FIL. Both FIL and its wholly owned subsidiary, Forester Fund Management Limited, have
been dormant since.

Given FLL’s subsidiaries have either been dormant or non-trading throughout the financial year, the
Company has elected to prepare Company only financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020. Any prior year comparatives which were presented on a consolidated basis have not been
presented in these financial statements. A reconciliation of the 2019 reported Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Company Statement of Comprehensive Income is provided below:

£'000
2019 Consolidated Total Comprehensive Income 20,560
Amortisation of TW intangible asset arising on consolidation 2,289
Dividend in specie received from FIL 18,861
Impairment of subsidiary (18,976)
Tax 116
2019 Company Total Comprehensive Income 22,850
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Forester Life Limited
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that have been
adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

o Definition of Material - amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
The amendments make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. The concept of
‘obscuring’ material information with immaterial information has been included as part of the
new definition. The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘'could
influence' to 'could reasonably be expected to influence'.

o Definition of Business — amendments to IFRS 3
The amendments clarify that to be considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business. The amendments are applied prospectively to all business combinations and
asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2020.

e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
These amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge accounting
to continue for affected hedges during the period of uncertainty before the hedged items or
hedging instruments affected by the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a result
of the on-going interest rate benchmark reforms.

e Revised Conceptual Framework for Reporting
The Company has adopted the amendments included in Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards for the first time in the current year. The amendments
include consequential amendments to affected Standards so that they refer to the new
Framework. The Standards which are amended are IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS
8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

In September 2016 IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’ - Deferral of IFRS 9
that addresses the accounting consequences of the application of IFRS 9 to insurers prior to
implementing the new accounting standard for insurance contracts, IFRS 17, which replaces IFRS 4.

On 25 June 2020, the IASB issued a revised amendment following publication of the final IFRS 17
standard, in order to align the deferral period with the effective date of IFRS 17 standard.

The amendments introduced two options for insurers: the deferral approach and the overlay approach.
The deferral approach provides an entity, if eligible, with a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9.
The overlay approach allows an entity to remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting
mismatches that may occur before the new insurance contracts standard is applied.

The deferral approach provides companies whose activities are predominantly related to insurance, an
optionai temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 until 1 January 2023.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Company has determined that it is eligible for, and has elected to apply, the temporary exemption
from IFRS 9 as specified in IFRS 4. The Company’s business activities are predominantly connected to
insurance, its insurance contract liabilities and non-derivative investment contract liabilities measured
at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL"”) make up a significant part of its total liabilities.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that have been issued
but not yet in effect and have not been adopted early by the Company

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’, replacing IFRS 4, is effective for the 2023 year-end. The standard sets
out new requirements for recognising, measuring, presenting and disclosing amounts arising from
insurance/reinsurance contracts. It applies to all insurance contracts as well as to certain financial
instruments with discretionary participation features.

The impact of adoption of IFRS 17 significantly impacts the measurement and presentation of the
contracts within scope of the standard.

The core of IFRS 17 is a general model, supplemented by a specmc adaption for contracts with direct
participation features (the variable fee approach)

The main features of the new accounting model for insurance contracts are, as follows:

e the measurement of the present value of future cash flows incorporating an explicit risk
adjustment and remeasured at each reporting period (the fulfiiment cashflows);

e a contractual service margin that is equal and opposite to any day one gain in the fulfilment cash
flows of a group of contracts, representing the unearned profit of the insurance contracts to be
recognised in profit or loss over the service period (coverage period);

¢ the presentation of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income based on the concept of insurance services provided during the period;
and

o extensive disclosures to provide information on the recognised amounts from insurance
contracts and the nature and extent of risks arising from these contracts.

Even though the Company has a significant proportion of its policies treated as investment contracts,
the scope of the new standard will have a significant operational impact on the Company. The Company
has mobilised a project to assess the financial and operational implications of the standard, and work
will continue throughout the remainder of 2021 to ensure technical compliance and to develop the
required system capability to implement the standard.

The final standard was published on 25 June 2020 and remains subject to endorsement by the EU and
the UK. We note the UK’s endorsement procedure, following departure from the EU, remained under
development through the transition period to the end of December 2020.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

" IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, replacing IAS 39, modifies the
classification and measurement of financial assets and contracts to buy and sell non-financial items.

IFRS 9 incorporates new classification and measurement requirements for financial assets, the
introduction of an expected credit loss impairment model which will replace the incurred loss model of
IAS 39, and new hedge accounting requirements. Under IFRS 9, all financial assets will be measured at
either amortised cost or fair value. The basis of classification will depend on the business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The standard retains most of IAS 39's requirements for financial liabilities except for those designated

at fair value through profit or loss whereby that part of the fair value changes attributable to own credit
is to be recognised in other comprehensive income instead of the income statement.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements are more closely aligned with risk management practices
and follow a more principles-based approach.

The mandatory effective date for applying IFRS 9 is for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. The Company has elected to apply a temporary exemption from IFRS 9 as specified in the
amended IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’.

In addition, certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the company.
These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods.

b) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the Company to select accounting policies and make
estimates and assumptions that affect items reported in the financial statements. The Audit Committee
reviews the reasonableness of judgements and assumptions applied and the appropriateness of
significant accounting policies.

The Company’s most significant accounting policies are summarised below, along with the key areas
requiring estimation and judgement within each accounting policy:

* Note 1.7 - the classification of contracts as insurance or investment on initial recognition, which
requires an assessment of whether significant insurance risk has been transferred to the
Company.

* Note 1.3 (a) - the classification of investments including the application of the fair value option.
The Company classifies its investments as either FVTPL or AFS. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the investments were acquired and is determined by management at
initial recognition.

All estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current facts and circumstances, assumptions
based on that knowledge and their predictions of future events and actions. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties as at 31 December 2020 that have a
_ significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the next financial year is included below: '

+ Note 14 and Note 16 - in the measurement of insurance contract liabilities, assumptions of lapse
rates, mortality rates and judgements related to expense allocations represent the key estimates
in the determination of the liabilities. The sensitivity analysis can be found in Note 21.

« Note 1.9 and Note 6 - in the measurement of employee benefit obligations, Note 6 sets out the

major assumptions used to calculate the pension scheme asset and the sensitivity of the
schemes’ liabilities to changes in key assumptions.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.2 Investment property

Investment properties comprise real estate investments held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties are initially recognised at the purchase price including transaction
costs. These properties are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in value recorded in
investment income. Investment properties are appraised annually.

1.3 Financial assets
a) Financial investments

At initial recognition, financial investments, comprising bonds and equities, are designated or classified
as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL") or Available for Sale (“"AFS”).

Financial investments supporting insurance and investment contract liabilities are designated as FVTPL
to reduce measurement or recognition inconsistencies that would otherwise arise as a result of
measuring assets and the corresponding liabilities on different bases. The fair value of unit linked
investment contract liabilities is determined by reference to the assets supporting these liabilities.
Therefore, changes in the fair value of unit linked investment contract liabilities primarily offset changes
in the fair value of the financial investments supporting these liabilities.

Financial investments are also classified as FVTPL assets if they are acquired principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial investments not backing liabilities are classified as
AFS assets.

Bonds and equities are designated as either FVTPL or AFS and both are initially recorded at fair value
on the trade date with AFS recorded at fair value plus transaction costs.

The fair value of publicly traded bonds is determined using quoted market bid prices. For non-publicly
traded bonds, fair value is determined using an indicative price supplied by a broker.

The fair value of publicly traded equities is determined using quoted market bid prices. Transaction
costs on FVTPL equities are expensed. Transaction costs directly attributable to AFS equities are
capitalised as part of the original cost of the equity.

Changes in the fair value of FVTPL on bonds and equities are recorded in net unrealised gains/ (losses)
on fair value through profit or loss on investments, a component of net income in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Changes in the fair value of AFS bonds and equities are recorded in net gains/(losses) on AFS assets,
a component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and bank deposits that have an original
maturity of three months or less.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value.
c) Loans to policyholders

Loans to policyholders are classified as loans and receivables and are carried at cost less any
impairment, which in most cases equals their unpaid balance.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
d) Financial asset impairments

AFS financial assets are assessed individually for impairment at each date of the Statement of Financial
Position. The Company considers various factors in assessing impairments, including but not limited to
the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer; specific adverse conditions affecting an
industry or region; a significant and prolonged decline in fair value below the cost of an asset;
bankruptcy or default of the issuer; and delinquency in payments of interest or principal. Bonds are
deemed to be impaired when there is no longer reasonable assurance of timely collection of the full
amount of the principal and interest due, with the impairment being based on an assessment of the
recoverable amount.

When an AFS asset is identified as impaired, the net loss in OCI is reclassified to net realised gains
(losses), a component of net income. Any further reduction in value, subsequent to the initial
recognition of impairment, is also included in net income in the period in which the change occurs.

An impairment loss on AFS assets is reversed if there is objective evidence of a permanent recovery in
the value of the asset based on an event occurring after the impairment loss was initially recognised.
Any such reversal for an impaired AFS debt security is reflected in net income. Any subsequent recovery
in the fair value of an impaired AFS equity security is recognised in OCI.

1.4 Leases

As a lessor, the Company determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or
operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, the lease is a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. This is reported within “Investment Income”.

1.5 Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less any accumulated impairment.

1.6 Intangible assets

a) Communication Workers Friendly Society ("CWFS”) management contract

The CWFS management contract asset represents the right to manage the insurance contracts that
were acquired in respect of CWFS in 2011. The initial fair value was determined by reference to the
amount paid by means of an injection into the segregated CW insurance fund. It is amortised straight
line over the life of those contracts, expiring in 2022.

An intangible asset with finite life is treated as an asset with a limited period of benefit to the entity. As
there is no reliable market value available to evaluate the value in use of the asset, the most appropriate
method will be the present value of future profits emerging from the CW business. If there are indicators

of impairment, then the recoverable amount is determined, and the asset is written down to the
recoverable amount.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
b) Halifax Child Trust Fund business

On 17 January 2020, Forester Life Limited signed an agreement to acquire the Child Trust Fund book
of Halifax, a member of the Lloyds Banking Group. The transaction was completed on 10 April 2020
following the bulk transfer into FLL of ¢.474,000 CTF plans and their associated assets under
management. At the same time, IFRS liabilities of a corresponding value were created in FLL in respect
of the transferred investment contracts.

The full value of the Halifax CTF purchase consideration has been capitalised as an intangible asset.
This intangible asset represents the economic benefits from the CTF business which will flow to FLL
between now and 2028, when the last of the CTF Customers reach maturity. The useful economic life
of the intangible asset is therefore estimated as 8 years from initial recognition date.

As the profits emerging from the CTF book are highly correlated with its fee revenue, a revenue-based
amortisation method is deemed to be the most appropriate amortisation method to be applied.

For impairment testing purposes, the “value in use” of the intangible asset is based on the book’s
present value of future profits on a marginal cost basis. If there are indicators of impairment, the
recoverable amount will be determined, and the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. The
impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the related financial year.

c) Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition costs (“"DAC") represent incremental costs incurred at the time of issue of an
investment contract. DAC is capitalised to the extent that it can be offset against management charges
on investment contracts and is amortised over the lesser of 10 years or the life of the contract. The
rate of amortisation is consistent with the recognition of the related fee income on investment contracts.
DAC on lapsed or terminated contracts is written off immediately. DAC is further reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is written down by the amount that is considered to be no longer
recoverable.

1.7 Insurance and investment contracts

Product contracts are classified as insurance or investment contracts based on the level of insurance
risk that the Company accepts from the policyholder.

a) Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk to the Company.
Insurance risk exists when the Company agrees to compensate policyholders or beneficiaries of an
insurance contract for specified future events, such as death or disability that may adversely affect the
policyholder and whose amount or timing are uncertain. Insurance contracts are shown as insurance
contract liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Non-Profit insurance contracts
Non-profit insurance contracts are written in the Company’s Other Business Fund (“"OBF").

The Company is aligned with the requirements of Solvency II where insurance contract liabilities are
the sum of Best Estimate Liabilities and a Risk Margin. Under IFRS, non-profit liabilities in the OBF are
also equal to the sum of Best Estimate Liabilities and Risk Margin. The Best Estimate Liabilities have
been calculated using the gross premium method ("GPM") and are reported gross of ceded reinsurance.
The GPM requires assumptions to be made about future best estimate cash flows, and there is significant
risk that actual results will vary from those estimates. This risk varies in proportion to the length of the
estimation period and the potential volatility of each assumption.

35



Forester Life Limited
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Under the Solvency II approach, the Best Estimate Liabilities for an insurance contract may be negative,
and any such negatives remaining within the liabilities are not set to zero.

To account for uncertainty in establishing these estimates and to allow for possible deviation in
experience, a Risk Margin is added to the Best Estimate Liabilities. The Risk Margin is intended to allow
for the cost of the capital which another insurer would need to allocate to take on the business in an
arms’ length transaction. The Risk Margin is calculated in line with that used for Solvency II regulation
purposes, with the following clarifications:
+ When assessing multiple direction persistency stresses, the relevant stress will be the direction
that bites at a company level for all contracts, not just non-profit insurance contracts in the OBF.
e The cost of capital used in the Risk Margin is currently the 6% per annum laid down by the
Solvency II regulations, but the Company may amend this estimate should this be appropriate
in the future.

With Profits insurance contracts

The liabilities of each of the closed with-profits funds have been set equal to the total assets of those
funds. This reflects the fact that the totality of the assets of these funds will be distributed to the
relevant policyholders of those funds. Separately, the Solvency II regime tests to ensure that each of
these funds is able to meet its Best Estimate Liabilities (which includes the value of the guaranteed
benefits), Risk Margin and Solvency II capital requirements. Should any of these funds not be able to
fully cover its own Solvency II requirements, then the balance would be covered by the OBF.

b) Reinsurance assets

The Company enters into reinsurance arrangements with other insurers in order to limit its exposure to
significant losses. Maximum limits have been established for the retention of risks associated with life
insurance policies by line of business. Risks in excess of these limits are reinsured with well-established,
highly rated reinsurers. Reinsurance assets are measured consistently with the amounts associated
with the underlying insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance
arrangement and with accepted actuarial practice in the UK.

Reinsurance transactions do not relieve the Company of its primary obligation to policyholders. Losses
could result if a reinsurer fails to honour its obligations. Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment
on a regular basis for any events that may trigger impairment. Impairment occurs when there is
objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect amounts due under the terms of the
contract. Any impairment loss is recorded in net income in the statement of comprehensive income.

Premiums for reinsurance ceded are presented as ceded premiums and reinsurance recoveries on claims
incurred are recorded as ceded policyholder benefits. The net balance with reinsurers with respect to
ceded premiums and paid claims is recorded as an amount receivable from or payable to reinsurers and
included in other assets or other liabilities, respectively, on the statement of financial position.

¢) Investment contract liabilities —= Unit Linked

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk, with no significant insurance risk,
to the Company. Investment contracts include unit linked contracts, settlement options with no life
contingency and various amounts on deposit.

Investment contract liabilities are recorded at fair value. Deposits to and withdrawals from investment
contracts increase and decrease the liabilities respectively. Fee income derived from unit linked
contracts is reported in other operating income in the statement of comprehensive income. Investment
income and changes in the fair value of the unit linked investments are offset by a corresponding change
in the unit linked liabilities.
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d) Investment contract liabilities = with Discretionary Participation Features (‘DPF’)

This category mainly comprises the Company’s Deferred Pensions line of business. The business has
been categorised as a Ring-Fenced Fund under Solvency II and has been accounted for similarly to with
profits business, whereby total liabilities are set equal to the fund assets. A portion of the excess of
the fund assets over the guaranteed liabilities accrues to the shareholder, whereby the shareholder
receives 1/9% of bonuses allocated to the policyholders. This portion is recognised within the total
liability until each bonus declaration is made.

1.8 Income taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred taxes. Tax is recognised as an expense
or income in profit or loss, except when it relates to an item included in OCI or equity, in which case
tax is also recognised in OCI or equity as appropriate.

The current tax expense (recovery) is based on taxable income (loss) for the year under UK tax
regulations and the enacted or substantively enacted tax rate for the year and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred taxes are accounted for using the liability method, whereby tax expected to be payable or
recoverable is calculated on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities under IFRS and the tax assets and liabilities calculated under the regulations of the relevant
tax authority. Temporary differences are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
those differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits
and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will
be available against which these tax assets can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets and liabilities exists.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it becomes probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered. .

1.9 Employee benefits
a) Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays variable
contributions into a separate entity to secure certain benefits. The plan liabilities are valued periodically,
and to the extent that the liabilities exceed the assets the Company has an obligation to increase its
contributions to meet the deficit. Re-measurements of the liability, comprising actuarial gains and losses
and the return on plan assets less interest incurred, are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The Company operates a defined benefit plan that was acquired as part of the acquisition of The
Tunbridge Wells Equitable Friendly Society. See Note 6 for more details.

b) Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an operating
expense in the statement of comprehensive income in the periods during which services are rendered
by employees. The Company provides access to a defined contribution pension plan for eligible
employees. This plan is administered by FLL's parent company, Forester Holdings (Europe) Limited.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
c) Other employee benefits

The Company also provides health benefits to eligible employees who are absent from work due to
disability. The costs are expensed as they are incurred. The Company does not operate a share option
scheme.

1.10 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recorded when it is probable that there will be a future outflow of resources and the
amount can be reliably measured. If the event resulting in a future obligation is less than probable but
greater than remote, or the amount cannot be reliably estimated, a contingency is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

2.0 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised as follows:
a) Insurance contracts

Premiums on long-term insurance contracts and participating investment contracts are recognised as
income when receivable, except for investment-linked premiums which are accounted for when the
corresponding liabilities are recognised. For single premium business, this is the date from which the
policy is effective: For regular premium contracts, receivables are recognised at the date when
payments are due. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and before any sales-based
taxes or duties.

b) Fees

The Company generates revenue from the management of investment contracts and ring-fenced
fund assets. Fees charged on investment management services are based on the contractual fee
arrangements applied to assets under management and recognised as revenue as the services are
provided. The income from investment contracts is primarily derived from fees for administration and
managing of funds. Revenue generated on investment contracts is recognised as services are provided.
No significant judgements are applied on the timing or transaction price. No transaction fees are charged
to implement trades for clients.

c) Investment income

Investment income, net of investment expenses, realised gains (losses) on the sale of investments and
changes in the fair value of FVTPL assets are recorded in investment income within the statement of
comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of AFS assets are recognised in OCI. Upon de-
recognition of an AFS asset the cumulative gain or loss that was previously recognised in OCI is
recognised in the income statement.

Interest and rental income are recognised on an accruals basis and dividends are recognised when they
are declared. Interest on AFS assets is recognised on an effective interest rate basis.
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2 GROSS WRITTEN PREMIUMS

a) Analysis of long-term business premiums (excludes new business)

2020 2019

Gross Net Gross Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Life contracts 15,178 14,829 18,957 18,541
Pension contracts 3,625 3,605 3,742 3,520
Total 18,803 18,434 22,699 22,061
Participating contracts 15,243 14,897 18,992 18,581
Non-participating contracts 3,181 3,158 3,130 2,903
Unit linked contracts 379 379 577 577
Total 18,803 18,434 22,699 22,061
Periodic premiums 18,803 18,434 21,430 20,792
Single premiums - - 1,269 1,269
Total 18,803 18,434 22,699 22,061

b) Analysis of new long-term business premiums, defined as those which arise from new policies written
during the year as distinct from premiums received on existing policies. All new business in 2020 and
2019 was in non-participating contracts.

2020 2019

Gross Net Gross Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

" Life contracts 92 92 282 282
Pension contracts 1,463 1,463 2,071 2,071
Total 1,555 _ 1,555 2,353 2,353
Periodic premiums 797 797 1,203 1,203
Single premiums 758 758 1,150 1,150
Total 1,555 1,555 2,353 2,353
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3  OPERATING EXPENSES

A breakdown of operating expenses by nature is provided below:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Employee benefits
Salaries, benefits 3,958 6,902
Social security costs 977 998
Pension plan expenses 772 758

5,707 8,658
Head office staff costs 10,368 9,948
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,552 300
Administration costs 4,908 5,241
Technology costs 8,238 8,627
Legal and professional fees 889 2,205
Auditor’s remuneration 571 471
Other expenses 288 687
Impairment of investment in subsidiary - 18,976
Total operating expenses 36,521 55,113

FLL's operating expenses were mainly costs recharged from its parent company, FHE. The average
number of employees during the period, all of whom were sales personnel, was 165 (2019: 171). Head
Office headcount is not included as staff are employed by the immediate parent company, FHE.

Salaries includes £1.3m of cash payments received from the UK Government’s Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme. Between 6 April and 31 August 2020, the majority of the Company’s Financial
Advisers were furloughed as they were unable to conduct face-to-face sales activity due to the Covid-
19 lockdown measures in place. During this period, FHE applied for a grant from the Job Retention
Scheme to cover a portion of their monthly wage costs.

The £19.0m impairment of investment in subsidiary in 2019 related to the share capital reduction of
Forester Investments Limited a wholly-owned subsidiary of FLL. Following the payment of a £18.9m
dividend from FIL to FLL and the reduction of FIL's share capital to £1, FLL reduced its carrying value
of the subsidiary from £19.0m to £1.
4 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Amounts receivable by the Company’s auditors and its associates in respect of services provided:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Audit of these financial statements 351 288
Amounts receivable by the Company's auditor and
its associates in respect of:
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the 24 35
Company
All other services 196 148
Total amounts receivable 571 471
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‘5 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amount of Directors’ emoluments, including pension scheme contributions, was as
follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Emoluments 633 606

Payable to one Dirgctor under a long-term incentive 161 177
plan (2019: one Director)

Pension contributions to money purchase scheme : 46 45

‘ 840 828

The aggregate of emoluments receivable by the highest paid Director, including retirement benefits of
£46,000 (2019: £45,000), was £669,000 (2019: £670,000).

Retirement benefits accrued under money purchase schemes to one Director (2019: one Director).

6 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Defined contribution pension plan

The immediate holding company, Forester Holdings (Europe) Limited, operates a defined contribution
pension scheme for the Company’s employees. Employer’'s pension contributions during the year
totalled £1,114,000 (2019: £1,051,000).

Defined benefit pension plan

The Company acquired the assets and liabilities of the Tunbridge Well Equitable Friendly Society
("TWEFS”) retirement benefit scheme in 2013. A number of employees and former employees are
members of this scheme, which closed to future accruals on 28 February 2011.

A full actuarial valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2017 in accordance with the Pensions Act 2004
scheme funding requirements and the funding of the scheme was agreed between the Company and
the Trustees in line with those requirements. The Company agreed with the Trustees that it would aim
to eliminate the deficit over a period of 6 years and 6 months from 30 June 2017 by the payment of
annual contributions of £1,620,000 in respect of the deficit. In addition, and in accordance with the
actuarial valuation, the Company agreed with the Trustees that it will meet expenses of the scheme
and levies to the Pension Protection Fund. The full actuarial valuation for the valuation date as at 30
June 2020 has not been completed.

Based on the latest actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2020, the scheme deficit was £3,359,000
(2019: £4,228,000).

Reinsurance of the pension scheme liabilities

Management implemented a stop-loss arrangement with effect from 1 October 2016 whereby the
Tunbridge Wells Ring Fenced Fund ("TW RFF"”) paid a £4.3m reinsurance premium to the non-profit
business fund of FLL ("OBF"). In return, the OBF undertook to reimburse TW RFF for payments in excess
of £5.7m made in respect of the TWEFS pension scheme liabilities.

In March 2020, TW RFF fully settled its £5.7m share of the deficit. Under the terms of the reinsurance
arrangement, future contributions and movements in the pension deficit will be borne by the OBF. At
31 December 2020, £3,359,000 (2019: £3,991,225) of the TWEFS scheme deficit of £3,359,000 (2019:
£4,228,000) was borne by the Company’s shareholder fund.
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6 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued)

The IAS 19 pension scheme movements will continue to be recorded in the TW RFF, however the Income
Statement impact in the TW Fund will be offset by the reinsurance inflows from OBF. The reinsurance
arrangement has no net impact on FLL's Income Statement as a Company.

The pension scheme amounts recognised in FLL's Statement of Financial Position were:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Present value of funded obligations (40,671) (36,613)
Fair value of scheme assets 37,312 ‘ 32,385
Deficit (3,359) (4,228)
Additional liability to reflect present value of
committed future contributions - -
Net liability at 31 December (3,359) (4,228)

The actual return on plan, assets in the period was an income of £4,292,000 (2019: income of
£4,111,000). The amounts recognised in the income statement were:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Net interest ' 68 138
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions 538 479
Total expense 606 617

There was no current service cost as benefit accruals ceased in 2011. No past service benefit
improvements were implemented during the accounting period.

IFRIC 14

In accordance with IAS 19, a minimum funding assessment was carried out at year end. The assessment
showed a liability position of £4.8m (2019: £4.2m). The Company is not required to recognise any
additional liabilities in relation to its funding plans. In accordance with the Trust Deeds of the pension
scheme, FLL has unconditional right to any surplus arising from the scheme either through future
refunds or reductions in future contributions.

Guaranteed Minimum Pensions

The English High Court ruling on the Lloyds Banking Group’s defined benefit pension scheme was
published on 26 October 2019, and held that UK pension schemes with Guaranteed Minimum Pensions
("GMPs") accrued from 17 May 1990 must equalise for the different effects of these GMPs between men
and women. The case also provided some guidance on related matters, including the methods for
equalisation. On 20 November 2020, there was a further High Court ruling on the same case which
clarified the obligations of pension schemes to equalise past transfer values for payments made since
17 May 1990.

The TWEFS defined benefit obligations have been adjusted assuming the following:
¢ The minimum allowable method will be applied to past and future benefit payments
¢ There will be no limit on the “look-back” period for rectification
¢ No allowance for members who no longer have GMP liabilities within the scheme (members who
have died without a spouse and members who have transferred out for example).
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6 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued)

The allowance has been estimated based on average impacts for schemes with similar service periods

and benefit structures.

The present value of plan liabilities is measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows
to be paid out by the plan using the projected unit credit method. The projected unit credit method is
an accrued benefits valuation method. In assessing this figure for the purpose of these disclosures,
allowance has been made for future statutory revaluation of benefits up to retirement. At 31 December
2020, the accumulated defined benefit obligation was £40,671,000 and the GMP reserve was estimated
to be 1.34% of the obligation. This does not include the impact of the 2020 High Court ruling mentioned

above, which is not expected to be material.

Changes in the value of defined benefit obligation were as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation

Interest cost

Actuarial losses on changes in financial
assumptions

Past service cost arising from GMP equalisation
Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

Opening fair value of scheme assets

Interest income

Return on plan assets excluding interest income
Employer contributions net of charges

Benefits paid

Closing fair value of scheme assets

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
36,613 33,757
722 895
3,783 2,653
538 479
(985) (1,171)
40,671 36,613
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
32,385 27,825
654 757
3,638 3,354
1,620 1,620
(985) (1,171)
37,312 32,385

The major assumptions used by the Actuaries to value the defined benefit obligation at 31 December

were as follows:

Financial assumptions

Rate of increase in pensions in payment (Limited
Price Index) ) '
Discount rate

Inflation assumption (RPI)

Mortality assumptions

Mortality: assumed life expectancy at age 65
Male retiring now

Female retiring now

Male retiring in 20 years

Female retiring in 20 years
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2020

2.30%-3.60%
1.40%
3.00%

Years
21.8
23.7
23.1
25.2

2019

2.30%-3.60%
2.00%
3.00%

Years
21.6
23.5
22.6
24.7
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6 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued)

As the defined benefit scheme has been closed to future accruals since 1 March 2011 the rate of increase
in salaries is not applicable because it has no effect on the actuarial liabilities.

The sensitivity to changes in the assumptions has been estimated as follows:

Assumption

Change in assumption

Change in liabilities

Discount rate

Increase of 1.00% p.a.
Decrease of 1.00% p.a.

Decrease by 17.0%
Increase by 21.1%

Rate of future revaluation of deferred
pensions

Increase of 0.25% p.a.
Decrease of 0.25% p.a.

Decrease by 2.8%
Increase by 2.0%

Rate of future pension increases

Increase of 1.00% p.a.
Decrease of 1.00% p.a.

Increase by 2.3%
Decrease by 1.7%

Mortality

Increase in life expectancy
of +1 year
Increase in life expectancy
of -1 year

Increase by 4.0%

Decrease by 3.9%

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2020 was 19 years (2019: 19

years).

The assets in the scheme were:

UK equities

Overseas equities

Gilts

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash

Liability driven investments ("LDI")
Other

Total assets

7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

a) Income tax expense

2020

2019
£'000 £'000
844 777
11,020 10,156
5,829 5,372
8,583 6,478
1,745 1,608
1,987 1,942
6,029 4,877
1,275 1,175
37,312 32,385

Current and deferred taxes are included in income taxes on the Statement of Comprehensive Income

as follows:

Corporation Tax expense / (credit)
Current period
Adjustment to prior periods

Deferred income tax expense / (credit)

Relating to the origination and reversal of timing

differences

Adjustment to prior periods

Impact of change in deferred tax rate
Income tax expense

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
4,416 7,165

(5,805) (3,067)

(1,389) 4,098
2,646 7,847

(2,059) (896)

(1,095) -

(1,897) 11,049
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The £5.8m prior year adjustment in respect of Corporation Tax was driven by a release of historical tax
provisions following the closure of previous periods’ tax computations.

b) Income taxes included in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) is presented net of income taxes. The following items of tax
expense/(credit) were included in OCI.

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Corporation Tax .
Gains/(losses) on debt securities - -
Deferred tax
Unrealised gains on available-for-sale assets 299 786
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (41) -
Adjustment to prior periods 837 -
Reduction in deferred tax rate ‘ 99 .-
Income taxes included in OCI 1,194 786

c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Income tax expense differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the UK statutory tax
rates to income before taxes for the following reasons:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Profit for the period before taxation 30,192 27,899
UK tax at 19% (2019: 19%) 5,736 5,301
Tax on ring-fenced funds* 1,696 10,152
Impact of other policyholder tax 527 -
Impact of amortisation not deductible for tax 503 57
purposes
Profits taxed at rates below the standard rate (1,400) (674)
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax (1,095) -
Overprovided in previous periods (7,864) (3,787)
Tax Charge (1,897) 11,049

*The surplus after tax for the ring-fenced funds is for the benefit of policyholders, and the allocation of
this surplus is treated as a pre-tax expense in these financial statements. The reported pre-tax profit
of the ring-fenced funds is therefore equal and opposite to the tax charge of the ring-fenced funds.

d) Change of tax rate

The Finance Act 2020 maintained the Corporation Tax main rate at 19% for the financial year beginning
1 April 2020. This reversed a previous bill which enacted a reduction in the UK Corporation Tax rate
from 19% to 17% from 1 April 2020 onwards. The Corporation Tax main rate has also been set at 19%
for the financial year beginning 1 April 2021. This rate has been applied in determining the deferred tax
balances.

The Chancellor in his Budget speech on 3 March 2021 announced an increase in the Corporation Tax
rate from 19% to 25% effective from 1 April 2023. This increase in the tax rate is not expected to have
a material impact on the Company’s net assets.
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7  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

e) Deferred income taxes

Where the tax basis of assets and liabilities differs from the carrying amount in the financial statements,
these differences give rise to deferred income tax assets and liabilities. The deferred tax assets and
liabilities at 31 December 2020 were calculated based on the rate at which they were expected to
reverse.

The Company’s net deferred tax balances are shown in the table below:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
The closing deferred tax balances comprise:
Tax losses carried forward 6,065 8,016
Transitional adjustments (318) (930)
Excess and deferred expenses 512 757
Capital losses carried forward - -
Unrealised and deferred gains (5,141) (5,837)
Defined benefit pension scheme 201 -
Net deferred tax asset 1,319 2,006
The net movements in the deferred tax asset account were as follows:
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Beginning of year 7,438 9,546
Statement of net income: credit/(expense)
Adjustment to prior periods (154) 117
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax 857 -
Utilisation of tax losses (3,218) (2,225)
Movements in other timing differences (139)

End of year 4,784 7,438

The net movements in the deferred tax liability account were as follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Beginning of year 5,432 589
Statement of net income: (credit)/expense

Adjustment to prior periods (1,376) 1,002

Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax (140) -

Movements in other timing differences (452) 3,841

End of year . 3,465 5,432

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the

realisation of the future tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2020,
there were no unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of the Company’s tax losses (2019: £nil).

46



Forester Life Limited
8 ACQUISTION OF CHILD TRUST FUND BOOK OF BUSINESS

On 17 January 2020, Forester Life Limited signed an agreement to acquire the Child Trust Fund (*CTF")
book of Halifax, a-member of the Lloyds Banking Group. The transaction was completed on 10 April
2020 following the bulk transfer into FLL of c¢.474,000 CTF plans and associated assets under
management totalling £586m. IFRS liabilities of a corresponding value were created in FLL in respect
of transferred investment contracts. :

This transaction constituted an acquisition of assets and has been accounted for as such:

e FLL’s financial investments and IFRS investment contract liabilities both increased by £586m
following the transfer-in.

e £0.7m of expenses related to the acquisition and transfer of the business into FLL were fully
expensed through the Income Statement during the year.

+ The full value of the purchase consideration of £15m has been capitalised as an intangible asset.
The accounting policies in relation to the amortisation and impairment of this intangible asset
are set out in Note 1.6(b) above.

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

The Company’s intangible assets were made up of the following items:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Deferred acquisition costs 13,585 13,236
Management contract for CWFS business 380 680
Management contract for Halifax CTF business 12,651 _
26,616 13,916

Deferred acquisition costs

In accordance with IFRS 15 requirements, identifiable incremental acquisition costs of obtaining an
investment contract are eligible for deferral only if the entity expects to recover these costs. Acquisition
costs incurred in respect of FLL's insurance business are not deferred.

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Beginning of year 13,236 12,377
Additions T ' 3,252 T 1,198
Amortisation (2,903) (339)
End of year 13,585 13,236

Additions during the year were higher than prior year driven by lower lapse rate assumptions applied.
CWFS management contract

On 1 August 2011, FLL acquired the policies and associated assets and liabilities of the Communication
Workers Friendly Society Ltd ("CWFS"), increasing its assets under management by approximately
£96m. For regulatory purposes the policies are administered and accounted for in a ring-fenced fund.

In accordance with the acquisition agreement, the Company paid £3.3m into the CW ring fenced fund
at the date of acquisition, thereby increasing the unallocated surplus of the CW with-profits fund by the
same amount. A corresponding intangible asset, representing the value of the contract to manage the
CWFS policies, was also recognised.

47



Forester Life Limited
9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS (continued)

The intangible asset is amortised over the life of the CW policies, as shown below.

2020 2019

_£'000 £'000

Gross carrying value, beginning and end of year 3,300 3,300
Accumulated amortisation, beginning of year 2,620 2,320
Charge in the year 300 300
Accumulated amortisation, end of year 2,920 2,620
Net book value, beginning of year 680 980
Net book value, end of year 380 680

Child Trust Fund Book of Halifax

On 17 January 2020, FLL signed an agreement to acquire the Child Trust Fund book of Halifax, a
member of the Lloyds Banking Group. The transaction was completed on 10 April 2020 with the bulk
transfer of 474,000 CTF plans with funds under management totalling £586m. See Note 8 for further
details.

2020

£'000

Addition in the year ' 15,000
Amortisation charge in the year 2,349
Net book value, end of year . 12,651

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Movements in investment property balances were as follows: :
2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Balance, beginning of year 5,420 5,700
Additions at cost - -
Disposals : - 4 -
Revaluation » (170) (280)
Balance, end of year 5,250 5,420

The Company has freehold title to its investment property. The property was valued at 31 December
2020 by Adrian G Tutchings (FRICS), of Linays Commercial Limited, acting as an independent external
valuer. The valuation was performed accordance with the Valuation Standards as stated within the Red
Book including Valuation Technical & Performance Standards published by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (*RICS”). The basis of valuation was market value.

The market value is usually ascertained through a review of the sale price of properties within the local
area from which square meter unit values are derived and multiplied by the user office space. However,
the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in significant economic, social and political uncertainties
so a higher degree of judgement was required this year in performing comparisons to recent market
evidence. As the impact of Covid-19 on the real estate market is still unknown, Linays Commercial have
reported their market valuation on the basis of "material valuation uncertainty” as per the RICS Red
Book.
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10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

All investment properties are categorised as Level 3 assets in the fair value hierarchy with no movement
between categories during the year.

Related amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income were as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Rental income 369 369
Revaluation of properties (170) (280)
Net income from investment property 199 89

11 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company’s subsidiaries, which are all registered in England and Wales, are as follows:

Name of subsidiary Class of Ownership Principal activity
shares held | Direct | Indirect

Forester Investments Limited Ordinary 100% - Holding company

Forester Fund Management Limited | Ordinary - 100% Savings provider

Tunbridge Wells Equitable Friendly | N/A - - Non-trading

Society Trustee Company Limited *

* Tunbridge Wells Equitable Friendly Society Trustee Company Limited is limited by guarantee and
therefore holds no share capital. The Company has the power to appoint members of the Board.

For each of the above companies, voting rights exactly match the proportion of shares held.

All subsidiaries have their registered address at Foresters House, 2 Cromwell Avenue, Bromley BR2
9BF, United Kingdom.

All subsidiaries have been assessed and impaired to their net book value. During 2019, Forester

Investments Limited (“FIL"”) paid a dividend of £18.9m to FLL and reduced its share capital to £1. The
carrying value of FLL's investment in subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 was £1 (2019: £1).

2020 . 2019
£'000 £'000

Investment in subsidiaries -
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12 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Summary of financial investments

The carrying values and fair values of the Company’s invested assets are shown below:

Fair Value

Through Available carn::\al Total fair
Profit or For Sale \'I.Zlug value
Loss

As at 31 December 2020 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bonds 750,737 - 750,737 750,737
Equities * 4,269,419 74,043 4,343,462 4,343,462
Derivatives and Collateral 34,727 - 34,727 34,727
Total financial investments 5,054,883 74,043 5,128,926 5,128,926
As at 31 December 2019 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bonds 998,519 ) 998,519 998,519
Equities * 3,379,284 77,992 3,457,276 3,457,276
Derivatives and Collateral 18,443 B 18,443 18,443
Total financial investments 4,396,246 4,474,238 4,474,238

77,992

* The Company did not hold any direct equity holdings. All equities exposures were held through
collective investment schemes or index futures. On a look through basis, assets held within collective
investment schemes include equities, bonds and derivatives.

There were no transfers between Available For Sale ("AFS”) assets and assets classified as Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL") during the year.

a) Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses a fair value hierarchy to categorise the.inputs to the valuatlon techniques used to
measure the fair value of financial assets and liabilities. The three Ievels of the hierarchy are:

Level 1
Fair value is based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Fair value is based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted market prices for
similar, but not identical, assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted market prices for identical assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable, such as interest rates
and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment spreads, credit
risks, and default rates.

Level 3

Fair value is based on non-observable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that
are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 financial instruments are initially fair
valued at their transaction price. After initial measurement, the fair value of Level 3 assets and liabilities
is determined using valuation models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques.
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12

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)

The hierarchy level for financial assets is based on the following guidelines:

Bonds

Bonds are priced from a source which blends prices from external pricing providers. These prices
are a mixture of prices based on actual transactions and, in the case of iess liquid bonds, modelled
prices. The most liquid bonds, comprising those issued or guaranteed by the UK Government,
together with AAA-rated sovereign and supranational bonds, are generally categorised as Level 1.
Listed corporate bonds are generally included in Level 2.

" Equity securities

During the year, all equity investments were within collective investment schemes. These were all
deemed to be Level 1 assets as quoted market prices are available for these assets. On a look
through basis, assets held within collective investment schemes include equities, bonds and
derivatives. The Company also has exposures to global equities through collective investment
schemes investing in listed companies within the MSCI All Countries World Index.

Derivatives
All derivatives including foreign exchange contracts and futures classified as Level 2 as they are
either actively traded in an active market or all input data are observable.

The following table presents the financial investments measured at fair value and classified by the fair

value hierarchy:

Total fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
As at 31 December 2020 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Bonds 530,072 220,665 - 750,737
Equities 4,269,419 - - 4,269,419
Derivatives - 34,727 - 34,727
Available For Sale
Bonds - - - -
Equities 74,043 - - 74,043
Total 4,873,534 255,392 - 5,128,926
Total fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
As at 31 December 2019 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Bonds 757,961 240,558 - 998,519
Equities 3,379,284 - - 3,379,284
Derivatives - 18,443 - 18,443
Available For Sale
Bonds B - - -
Equities 77,992 - - 77,992
Total 4,215,237 259,001 - 4,474,238

Investment properties are categorised as Level 3 assets (refer to Note 10). There were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year (2019: £Nil).
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12 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)
b) Net investment income

The Company’s net investment income was made up of the following items:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Interest and dividends 13,610 34,974

Realised gains 127,480 90,183

Unrealised (losses) / gains (67,307) 452,465

Net return on financial assets 73,783 577,622

Net rental income 369 369

Unrealised gains/(losses) (170) (280)

Net return on investments properties 199 89

Investment Expenses (6,649) (6,556)

Total 67,333 571,155

Interest and dividends were derived from the following sources:
Loans and

FVTPL AFS receivables Total

For the year ended 2020 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Interest income from: ,

Cash and cash equivalents 118 - - 118

Bonds and other fixed term securities 13,229 - - 13,229

Loans to policyholders - , - 263 263

13,347 - 263 13,610

Dividend income - - - -

Total interest and dividends 13,347 - 263 13,610

FVTPL AFs Loansand Total

. receivables
For the year ended 2019 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Interest income from:

Cash and cash equivalents 337 - - 337

Bonds and other fixed term securities 15,511 - - 15,511

Loans to policyholders - - 265 265

15,848 - 265 16,113

Dividend income - - 18,861 18,861

Total interest and dividends 15,848 - 19,126 34,974

All equity investments are held through collective investment scheme and all dividend income was
reinvested directly back into the collective investment scheme. The £18.9m dividend income in 2019
was received from FLL's subsidiary undertaking, Forester Investments Limited.

Included within interest income was £Nil (2019: £Nil) in respect of interest income accrued on impaired
financial assets.
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12 - FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)

Net realised gains on financial assets comprised:

2020 2019
FVTPL AFS Total FVTPL AFS Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bonds and fixed term securities 17,737 - 17,737 12,560 85 12,645
Equities 64,765 2,913 67,678 47,289 - 47,289
Derivatives 42,065 - 42,065 30,249 - 30,249
Net realised gains on
financial assets 124,567 2,913 127,480 90,098 85 90,183
Net unrealised (losses)/gains on financial assets carried at FVTPL comprised:
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Bonds and fixed-term securities 12,177 11,604
Equities (85,370) 441,804
Derivative assets 11,097 5,585
Derivative liabilities (5,211) (6,528)
Net unrealised (losses) /gains on FVTPL
assets (67,307) 452,465
c) Net unrealised gains/(losses) on AFS assets
Net unrealised gains on AFS assets shown in the Other Comprehensive Income comprised:
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Unrealised gains for the current period 4,573 4,135
Previously recognised unrealised (gains)/losses (2,913) _
transferred to realised gains on disposal - -- ! - - -
Net unrealised gains on AFS assets 1,660 4,135

Included within the “Net unrealised gains on available-for-sale assets” of £425,000 on the Statement
of Comprehensive Income was a £1,235,000 tax charge related to these unrealised gains.

d) Impairments

During 2020 there was no reversal of impairment losses on disposal of AFS assets (2019: £Nil).
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13 INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Insurance and other receivables comprised the following:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Loans to policyholders 5,182 5,162
Policyholder debtors 3,460 452
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 4,859 5,776
Amounts due from reinsurers 238 174
Accrued investment income : 3,606 5,428
Policyholder taxes recoverable 1,279 2,377
Prepayments and other 3,689 4,974
Total insurance and other receivables 22,313 24,343

The fair values of the items in the table above, excluding the reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities,
approximates their carrying value. ’ : ’

14 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSETS
a) Nature and composition of insurance contract liabilities and related reinsurance assets
Insurance contract liabilities include life, permanent health, annuities in payment and with-profits

insurance.

The accounting policies for insurance contracts and related reinsurance assets are set out in Note 1.7(a)
and 1.7(b).

FLL's reinsurance treaty with its ultimate parent undertaking, IOF, ended on 31 December 2019,
However, the Company has other treaties in place with third-party reinsurers. Maximum limits have
been established for the retention of risks associated with life insurance policies by line of business.

b) Analysis of changes in insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets

With-Profits funds 2020 2019
Re- Re-

Gross insurance Net Gross insurance Net
liabilities assets liabilities liabilities assets liabilities
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
3:;““"' beginning of ¢ 559 (5,770) 454,759 493,563 (6,657) 486,906
In-force business (52,021) 916 (51,105) (33,034) 887 (32,147)
ﬁ:g:;g: in contract (52,021) 916 (51,105) (33,034) 887 (32,147)
Balance, end of year 408,508 (4,854) 403,654 460,529 (5,770) 454,759
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14 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSETS (continued)

Non-Profit funds 2020 2019
Re- Re-
Gross insurance Net Gross  insurance Net
liabilities assets liabilities liabilities assets liabilities

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
szf:nce, beginning of 41,773 (6) 41,767 40,346 (9) 40,337
New business (255) - (255) (664) - (664)
Halifax expense synergies (480) - (480) - - -
In-force business 3,988 1 3,989 1,843 3 1,846
Refinement of
assumptions (7,603) - (7,603) 248 - 248
Change in contract
liability (4,350) 1 (4,349) 1,427 3 1,430
Balance, end of year 37,423 (5) 37,418 41,773 (6) 41,767

c) Insurance contract liabilities and supporting assets

For each of the with-profits funds and the deferred pension fund, the entire fund is reserved for the
benefit of the fund’s policyholders (or the future shareholder share for the deferred pension fund) and
hence the liabilities are equal to the assets. The following assumptions therefore apply to the non-profit
insurance business only. For non-profit insurance business the valuation assumptions are based on best
estimates of future experience. Actual experience is monitored to assess whether the assumptions
remain appropriate. Sensitivity analysis can be found in Note 21.

Lapse rates
For non-profit business, the following lapse assumptions apply:

Product Lapse rate per
annum
Lifestyle/Mortgage Protection Options See below
Whole Life 0.0%
Forester Universal Life 7.0%
Monthly Income Benefit 4.0%
Deferred Pensions 4.0%
| Annuities in Payment 0.0% _
Other Policies 0.0% )
Year Lifestyle Mortgage
Protection Protection
Year 1 . - 9.0% 8.0%
Year 2 8.0% 8.0%
Year 3 7.00% 95.00%
Year 4 7.00% 11.00%
Year 5 7.00% 12.00%
Year 6 and thereafter 6.00% 10.00%

Investment returns
For non-profit insurance business, liabilities are discounted at risk free rates using Moody’s risk-free
rate which is aligned to the risk-free rate prescribed by EIOPA in accordance with Solvency II regulation.
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14 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSETS (continued)

Maintenance expenses

For non-profit insurance business, amounts are included in actuarial liabilities to provide for the costs
of administering in-force policies, including the costs of premium collection, adjudication and processing
of claims, periodic actuarial calculations, preparation and distribution of policy statements, and related
indirect expenses and overhead. The process of forecasting expenses requires estimates to be made
of factors such as inflation, salary rate increases, productivity changes, business volumes and indirect
tax rates. Estimates of future policy maintenance expenses are based on the Company’s expected
future experience. There is a margin for prudence included in the risk margin. (refer to Note 1.7(a)).

Mortality

For non-profit insurance, best estimate mortality rates are based on standard tables below:
Mortality tables 2020 i
Term Assurance TMO08, TF08 TMOO0, TFOO
TW Annuities in payment IMLOO/IFLOO IMLOO/IFLOO
Pensions in payment CMI 2019 M/F CMI 2017 M/F
Life Assurance AMOO0, AF0O0 AMOO, AFOO

The Company has identified that the principal insurance risks are a worsening of demographic risks,
higher expenses and lower interest rates. The nature of the demographic risks varies depending on the
specific product within the non-profit insurance block of business. For annuity products longer life
expectancies are the key risk, on health and life insurance products higher mortality and morbidity
rates create a strain for the Company. If there was a change to mortality rates that affected all non-
profit insurance products equally then the Company may benefit from an offsetting effect between some
of its products. The interest rate risk derives from a mismatch between the sensitivity of assets and
liabilities to changes in interest rates.

15 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES - UNIT LINKED

Changes in the unit linked investment contract liabilities during the year were as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Balance, beginning of year 3,871,045 3,314,098
Acquisition of the Halifax CTF business 585,706 )
Transfer from TW insurance contract liabilities 1,629 2,230
4,458,380 3,316,328
Additions to the account of the unit holder:
Deposits received from the unit holders 306,902 298,284
Investment income 3,518 9,076
Net unrealised (losses)/gains on investments (58,558) 420,818
Net realised gains on sale of investments 108,798 70,709
Tax expense (651) (2,614)
360,009 796,273
Deductions from the account of the unit holder:
Amounts withdrawn or transferred by unit (214,026) (189,809)
holders
Management fees (55,184) (51,747)
(269,210) (241,556)
Balance, end of year 4,549,179 3,871,045
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15 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES - UNIT LINKED (continued)

The acquisition of the Halifax CTF book of business was completed on 10 April 2020 with the transfer-
in of 474,000 CTF plans with assets under management totalling £586m. IFRS liabilities of the same
value were created in respect of the transferred investment contracts.

The unit linked investment contract liabilities were supported by the following assets/(liabilities):

2020 2019

£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 20,280 64,665
Bonds 416,314 664,021
Equities 4,096,230 3,132,284
Derivative assets 11,097 5,585
Derivative liabilities " (5,211) (6,528)
Other assets 10,469 11,018
Investments for account of unit holders 4,549,179 3,871,045

16 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES WITH DISCRETIONARY PARTICIPATING
FEATURES

Changes in the investment contract liabilities with discretionary participating features during the yéar
were as follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Balance, beginning of year 61,581 59,487
Deposits received during the year 12 37
Interest credited and other 1,057 5,037
Surrenders and encashments (2,576) (2,749)
Expenses charged to policyholders 90 (231)
Balance, end of year 60,164 61,581

The non-linked investment contract liabilities with discretionary participating features were supported
by the following assets/(liabilities):

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Bonds. 33,002 34,478
Equities : 19,081 19,152
Other assets 8,081 7,951
Investments for account of plan holders 60,164 61,581
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17 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FLL's investment policy permits its fund manager to use traded derivatives only for purposes of tactical

asset allocation, obtaining or hedging market exposures, and cash flow management. The asset and
liabilities of these contracts at 31 December were as follows:

2020 2019

Market value Market value

£'000 £'000

Exchange traded derivatives 10,547 3,977
Foreign exchange forward contracts 550 1,608
Total derivative assets 11,097 5,585
2020 2019

Market value Market value

£'000 £'000

Exchange traded derivatives ) }
Foreign exchange forward contracts 5,211 6,528
Total derivative liabilities 5,211 6,528

In addition to the above Derivatives position, the Company held coliateral of £24,179,911 as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: £14,466,652).

18 OTHER LIABILITIES

The Company'’s other liabilities comprised the following items:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Amounts owed to parent company 1,887 6,376
Amounts due to reinsurers 85 .83
Amounts due to policyholders 2,257 1,024
Other liabilities and deferred income 6,094 6,791
Total other liabilities 10,323 14,274

The fair value of these liabilities approximates their carrying value. Substantially all the other liabilities
were due within 12 months of the date of the Statement of Financial Position.

19 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Issued and authorised
68.5m (2019: 68.5m) Ordinary shares of £1 each 68,500 68,500

The Ordinary shares carry full voting rights and qualify for dividends. There are no restrictions on the
repayment of capital other than as imposed by the Companies Act 2006.
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20 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company is required to maintain eligible capital, or ‘Own Funds’ in excess of the value of its
Solvency Capital Requirements (*SCR") on the Solvency II basis and to comply with the requirements
established by the Solvency II Directive, as adopted by the Prudential Regulation Authority ("PRA") in
the UK. The overriding objective of the Solvency II framework is to ensure there is sufficient capital
within the insurance company to protect policyholders and meet their payments when due.

The Company has a long-term business fund, four ring-fenced funds and a shareholder fund. The
surplus contributed from the long-term business is not attributable to with-profits business and is
deemed to be distributable within the Company’s shareholder fund. Three of the ring-fenced funds are
with-profits funds which are closed to new business with the fourth being the deferred pension fund
that has been ring fenced since September 2016.

Ring fenced funds are segregated funds with their own assets and liabilities which are determined on a
Solvency II basis.

The Company intends to maintain surplus capital in excess of the SCR in order to meet the Solvency II
capital requirements, and to maintain an appropriate additional margin over this to absorb changes in
both capital and capital requirements.

Capital is held in the form of marketable investment assets. Management has set investment criteria
covering asset mix, credit quality, individual counterparty exposure, equity sector limits and fixed
income duration to maintain an appropriate balance between risk and return.

There are certain valuation differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the Solvency II balance
sheet, for example between IFRS insurance liabilities and Solvency II technical provisions. The Company
has complied with the capital requirements under Solvency II throughout the year.

The Company’s objectives in managing its capital are:

¢ to match the profile of its assets and liabilities closely, taking account of the risks inherent in
the business;

e to malntaln the financial strength sufficient to support new business growth in line with the
Company’s business plan;

e to satisfy the contractual entitlements of its policyholders and the requirements of its regulators;

e to ensure financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital
markets;

e to allocate capital efficiently to support growth;
to manage exposure to changes in interest and inflation rates by way of a comprehensive
hedging programme; and

¢ to manage exposure to movements in exchange rates.

In line with the Solvency II regulations and gTJidénce, the Company recogHisés loss absorbenc‘y capacity
of deferred tax (LACoDT) for its unit-linked business. The Company’s capital resources and requirements
are shown below:

2020 2019

£'m £m
Eligible Own Funds 269 267
Solvency Capital Requirement (155) (157)
Excess Own Funds 114 109
Solvency II coverage ratio 173% 170%
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21 RISK MANAGEMENT
FLL's approach to risk management is outlined in the Strategic Report on page 5.

The principal risks, including those that would threaten the business model, future performance,
solvency and liquidity are set out below including details of how they have been managed or mitigated.

Strategic risk

This is the risk that strategic objectives, as outlined in the business plan, are not met. This can be the
result of external events such as changes to regulatory policy or the actions of competitors, or due to
the failure of internal initiatives to retain customers and grow the business.

Management and mitigation

As part of the annual business planning process, the risks are identified that could have an immediate
or a future impact on the plan. Risks are assessed by reference to their likelihood and impact and
compared to the FLL’s risk appetite including solvency and interna! capital target metrics.

The output from the ORSA, including a forward-looking assessment of own risk, is reviewed in terms of
the Board's risk appetite.

The overall business plan taking into account any major strategic initiatives is reviewed, challenged and
monitored at both UK and parent company Board level. Stress and scenario testing, including reverse
stress testing to ascertain the point of business model failure, are further tools used to assess the
impact of key risks on capital and solvency on a forward-looking basis.

Emerging risks are identified and discussed at the Risk and Investment Committee annually and on an
ad hoc basis as required.

Key strategic risk

To implement FLL's strategy for growth, improved customer experience and greater operational
resilience, the company has given attention to increasing its digitai capabilities. The initial focus was to
enable the CTF Planholders, the first of whom turned 18 on 1 September 2020, to access their funds
on-line and either take their money or invest all or part of their savings into an adult savings product
should they wish to do so. The strategy includes Financial Advisers building affinity with the CTF
customers and their families, some of whom will have very little knowledge of the Company. This
approach has been hampered by Covid-19 as advisers have not been able to sell in person for most of
2020. Future deliverables include rolling out new MyPlans to members with an adult savings and
investment product and to offer a choice of funds. If the strategy does not achieve the expected levels
of engagement with customers, it could lead to lower than expected levels of revenue and missed
opportunities to meet customers' requirements. The risk is mitigated through strong oversight and
monitoring by the executive and the Board.

Regulatory risk is the risk that changes in laws or regulations could materially impact strategy, increase
the cost of running the business or change the competitive landscape. For example, regulators could
change ‘capital requirements, selling practices, the approach to data usage, and/or corporate
governance requirements all of which could materially impact the business. All known regulatory risks,
including risks arising from new policy initiatives such as those arising from environmental, social and
governance (ESG) themes are managed through horizon scanning and impact assessments. There is
some uncertainty over the shape of regulation in the near term as financial services were largely
overlooked during the Brexit negotiations. The UK Government has indicated that it may diverge from
the EU in regulatory matters which would give the UK regulators greater flexibility and could result in
new business opportunities.
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Investment Market Risk

The performance of investment markets may adversely impact earnings, profitability and/or surplus
capital. There are many factors that can cause market volatility such as increased geopolitical risk,
increased protectionism and socio-economic factors. In particular, the Covid-19 pandemic and the
measures to contain it had a significant impact on financial markets in the early part of 2020, increasing
the volatility of equity markets and credit spreads and reducing market liquidity. Although the losses
were largely recovered in the second half of the year the future remains uncertain particularly as the
success of the vaccine roll-out competes against the various mutations of the virus. Longer-term, the
transition to a lower carbon economy may significantly impact asset values.

For unit linked contracts there is a direct link between the investments and the obligations and FLL is
not directly exposed to any investment market risk for these contracts. However, there is a risk of
volatility in asset management fee income due to the impact of market price movements and interest
rate fluctuations on the value of the assets held in the unit linked funds on which investment
management fees are based.

The performance and liquidity of investment markets, interest rate movements and inflation impact the
value of investments held in the shareholder fund and those to meet the obligations from the insurance
business, and therefore will directly impact profitability.

FLL has an Investment Market Risk Policy in place which has been approved by the Board and outlines
the basis upon which this risk is managed. Trading is subject to restrictions and limits as outlined in the
Investment Policy Guidelines to ensure that market exposures are within appetite. Stress and scenario
testing is undertaken to understand the FLL's sensitivities to investment market risks.

Equity Risk

Equity price falls will impact the amount of revenue derived from fees from the unit linked products.
Some of the surplus assets have been used to seed equity funds, designed to give customers increased
choice, but thereby exposing the shareholder fund to market falls.

Currency Risk

The base currency of investments is GBP. For some funds, overseas assets may be purchased, or cash
held in other currencies. A strengthening in sterling will reduce the value of overseas assets, and
consequently reduce the value of future charges. For those funds holding overseas assets, currency
hedging is at the Fund Managers’ discretion, subject to limits as defined in the Investment Management
Policy.

Interest Rate Risk

FLL mitigates its exposure to interest rate risk by matching the duration of assets and liabilities by fund
which involves allocating financial investments to funds matching a specific type of liability. For products
with fixed and highly predictable benefit payments, investments are made in fixed income assets that
closely match the product liability cash flows. Protection against interest rate change is achieved as
any change in the fair market value of the assets will be offset by a similar change in the fair market
value of the liabilities. The risk associated with the mismatch in portfolio duration, cash flow and asset
prepayment exposure are reviewed regularly.

Falls in bond yields, inversely correlated with interest rates, boost bond values and unit -linked income,
more than offsetting the increase in the present value of expenses, future claims less premiums on
protection business and pension liabilities.

Some of the investment business contracts accrue interest at a long-term rate. The margin on this

business is sensitive to a sustained decline in interest rates, though FLL can vary the crediting rate to
reflect current and foreseen investment returns.
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Credit Risk

The Board approved Credit Risk Policy sets out the approach to the management of this risk. Specific
guidelines have been established:

¢ to minimise undue concentration of assets in any single geographic area, industry or Company.

o to limit the purchase of fixed income securities to investment-grade assets; and

¢ to specify minimum and maximum limits for fixed income securities by credit quality ratings.
Compliance with the guidelines is monitored monthly by Finance.

Counterparty risk in respect of the providers of settlement and custody services is minimised by
ensuring that the credit institutions have sound credit ratings.

Policyholder loans are generally covered by the surrender value.
Maximum exposure to credit risk
FLL's maximum exposure to credit risk related to financial instruments and other assets is the carrying

value of those assets, net of any allowances for losses. The maximum credit exposure to financial
instruments is as follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Cash and cash equivalents 48,630 81,028
Bonds 750,737 998,519
Policyholder debtors 8,642 4,751
Other assets subject to credit risk 48,398 38,035
856,407 1,122,333

Equities 4,343,462 3,457,276
Investment properties 5,250 5,420
Other assets not subject to credit risk 31,400 21,354
Total assets 5,236,519 4,606,383

Concentration of credit risk

FLL has established investment portfolio level targets and limits to ensure that portfolios are widely
diversified across asset classes and individual investment risks.

FLL sets limits on its exposure to a single issuer, including total exposure to a parent company, its
subsidiaries and any other entity for which the parent acts as a guarantor. Total exposure includes the
sum of FLL's investment in bonds, equities, money market instruments and, if applicable, cash and cash
equivalents.
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The following table provides details of the carrying value of bonds by nature of issuer and geographic
distribution.

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Bonds issued or guaranteed by: .
UK treasury and other UK agencies 539,053 766,432
EU government or agencies 24,314 24,568
Other Non EU global government _ _
Supranational bodies 25,354 25,679
Total government or supranational bonds 588,721 816,679
Total corporate bonds 162,016 181,840
Total bonds 750,737 998,519
The credit rating of the bond portfolio was as follows:
2020 2019
£'000 % £'000 %
Investment grade:
AAA ) 58,042 7.7% 45,497 4.6%
AA 562,277 74.9% 889,098 89.0%
A 67,821 9.0% 47,395 4.7%
BBB 62,597 8.3% 16,529 1.7%
Total bonds 750,737 100% 998,519 100%

Currency Risk

The base currency of investments is GBP. For some funds, overseas assets may be purchased, or cash
held in other currencies. A strengthening in sterling will reduce the value of overseas assets, and
consequently reduce the value of future charges. For those funds holding overseas assets, currency
hedging is at the Fund Managers’ discretion, subject to limits as defined in the Investment Management
Policy.

Loan impairments

An allowance for losses on loans is established when a loan becomes impaired as a result of deterioration
in credit quality, to the extent there is no longer assurance of timely realisation of the carrying value of
the loan and related investment income. The carrying value of an impaired loan is reduced to its
estimated net realisable value at the time of recognition of impairment. No allowances for losses were
taken in 2020 (2019: £nil).

Unrealised gains and losses on AFS assets are recorded in OCI at fair value.

At 31 December 2020, FLL held no bonds on which interest payments were in default (2019: Nil).
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Expense Risk

Expense risk arises from higher than expected expenses both currently and in terms of reduced future
profits. Current expenses are robustly controlled within risk appetite limits. In pricing long-term
insurance business, assumptions are made as to the future cost of product servicing. A significant
adverse divergence in actual expenses experience could reduce profitability. Regular analysis of long-
term expense assumptions is carried out to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Persistency Risk

Persistency is integral to the successful implementation of FLL's business plan. A deterioration in
persistency can result in the acquisition costs associated with the contract not being recouped, a fall in
the level of income derived from AMCs on assets under management and a reduction in the number of
extant policies and plans thereby impairing economies of scale, ieading to an increase in administration
costs per plan and a consequent erosion of profit margins.

Deterioration in persistency is normally a by-product of another risk(s) crystallising as follows:

»  Strategic Risk -~ FLL fails to offer products and/or services that meet customers’ demands and/or
expectations which leads to them taking their business elsewhere.

*» Investment Market Risk - poor investment returns or market volatility has the potential, to cause
customers to decide to lapse or surrender their policy prior to maturity or partially encash or fully
encash their plan;

» Credit Risk - default on corporate bonds could lead to impairment of investment returns which in
turn could give rise to customers deciding to lapse or surrender their policy prior to maturity or
partially encash or fully encash their plan.

= Operational Risk - a decline in customer service levels could impact customer retention. Equally,
regulatory sanctions levied against FLL could affect customer confidence thereby having a
detrimental effect on retention.

Risk management activity includes monitoring of surrender, lapse and encashment levels against
approved tolerances such that appropriate action can be taken if tolerance levels are breached. The
relationship with customers through the field force means that at times of stress the company can
respond directly to customers’ concerns and provide reassurance as necessary.

Operational risk

FLL does not seek to take on operational risk but accepts that, for the business undertaken, operational
risk is inherent. The key operational risks are cyber risk, changes in the legislative and regulatory
landscape and risks associated with the transformation project. Remote working arrangements are
known to increase cyber risk, with criminals seeking to compromise IT systems through increased social
engineering and phishing attacks. This risk has been addressed through existing IT protocols and
increased communications to staff. Changes in regulations can adversely impact the Company’s ability
to implement its business plan or the ability to deliver and implement change. For example, the
Government policy to combat the increasing rate of Covid-19 infections prevented the Field Force from
carrying out face-to-face visits through much of 2020, impacting sales negatively. The Company
monitors regulatory and legislative developments and makes necessary changes to systems and
processes as required. The main risk associated with the change programme, aimed at improving digital
capabilities and giving customers greater choice in how they do business with FLL, is that the
programme does not deliver the expected benefits and efficiencies. This risk is mitigated through strong
governance and oversight from the Board and senior management.
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Other Risks

The foregoing outlines the principal risks to which the business is exposed. Other risks include:

Insurance risk

FLL's approach to insurance risk is outlined in the Insurance Risk Policy which has been approved by
the Board.

The following risk factors are components of insurance risk:

e Mortality risk and morbidity risk are the risks that paid death claims or permanent health claims
occur sooner or are more volatile than assumed. This risk can occur on any contracts where the
payment on death or iliness is greater than the insurance contract liability held. This includes the
risk of anti-selection that results in a requirement to pay claims that FLL had not expected (for
example due to non-disclosure).

e Longevity risk is the risk that annuities in payment are paid for a longer period than assumed.
There is also longevity risk in respect of pension schemes.

FLL manages insurance risk by establishing Board approved polices and guidelines for product
development and product pricing which require that all material risks be provided for at the time of
product design and pricing of new products. Additionally, experience studies are performed annually,
the outcome of which is used to update the valuation of insurance contract liabilities and the pricing of
new and existing products. FLL also uses reinsurance to transfer risks in excess of its retention limits.

Covid-19 did not have a material financial impact from a mortality risk and morbidity risk point of view
due to the nature and type of liabiiities. For longevity risk, the annuity portfolio experienced excess
deaths compared to the best estimate basis similar to the levels as seen in the UK population. FLL will
continue to monitor the development of the pandemic specifically the efficacy of inoculations.

The actuarial assumptions used in the measurement of insurance contract liabilities take insurance risk
factors into account as discussed in Note 14,

Impact of key insurance sensitivities:

Variable Change in variable Impact on pre-tax P&L
Fall in lapse rates ' 10% fall £(1.2)m
Increase in expenses 10% increase £(0.7)m
Increase in mortality rates 2% increase ' £(0.3)m

Liquidity risk

A number of key processes and controls are in place to ensure that FLL has sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities. These include daily cash flow forecasts, cash balances/buffer held equivalent to one
month’s outflow, a high level of investments held in near-liquid assets and the maintenance of overdraft
facilities with key banking partners. In 2020 100% of claims were met without any liquidity concerns.

Given the highly liquid nature of the FLL's investment assets, their size relevant to net cash flows and
the level of controls in place it is not considered necessary to hold additional capital against Liquidity
Risk.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

There are three principal areas of potential default:

. credit institutions with which FLL has lodged its own assets or those of its customers.
. policyholders in terms of loans; and

. recoveries.

Counterparty risk is minimised by ensuring that the credit institutions and reinsurers used have sound
credit ratings. Policyholder loans are generally covered by the surrender value.

Concentration Risk

Concentration risk is not considered material as FLL's investment policy brovides limits regarding
concentration levels which ensure that sufficient diversification is maintained.

The estimated cash flows based on the contractual maturities of FLL’s significant financial assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2020 are shown as follows:

31 December 2020

Cash and cash equivalents
Bonds

Equities

Derivative assets

Derivative liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities
Investment contract liabilities*
Claims and other payables

31 December 2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Bonds

Equities

Derivatives assets
Derivative liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities
Investment contract
liabilities*

Claims and other payables

1 year or

1-5 5-10 Over 10
ur:zsast:c: years years years Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
48,630 48,630
750,737 750,737
4,343,462 4,343,462
11,097 11,097
(5,211) (5,211)
(41,024) (125,910) (86,430) (192,567) (445,931)
(4,609,343) (4,609,343)
(20,333) (20,333)
478,015 (125,910) (86,430) (192,567) 73,108
1 year or 1-5 5-10 Over 10 Total
less or years years years
undated
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
81,028 - - - 81,028
998,519 998,519
3,457,276 - - - 3,457,276
5,585 - - - 5,585
(6,528) - - - (6,528)
(55,075) (161,810) (92,866) (192,551) (502,302)
(3,932,626) - - - (3,932,626)
(17,729) - - - (17,729)
530,450 (161,810) (92,866) (192,551) 83,223

*Investment contract liabilities mainly comprise unit linked liabilities, the majority of which are Child
Trust Fund policies written to age 18. The remaining unit linked liabilities are whole life and have no
maturity date. The assets backing these liabilities have various maturity dates.
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Actual inflows from bonds may differ from contractual maturities either because assets are sold before
maturity or because certain borrowers have the right to call or prepay certain obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties. '

Ring Fenced Funds (RFFs)

FLL administers 4 closed books of business in RFFs. Three of these are with-profits funds, and each of
these are established by reference to a legal contract that outlines the basis upon which the fund will
be administered going forward to protect the interests of the policyholders within the fund. While the
funds are protected from contagion from FLL, if the RFFs themselves are unable to meet UK solvency
requirements, FLL is required to make good any such shortfall.

~The RFFs therefore pose the following risks to FLL:

o the potential for the solvency position of one or more of the RFFs to impair the capital position
of FLL and thereby affect its ability to deliver its strategy and business plan; and

o the potential for issues arising from the management and administration of the business held
within the RFFs to impact the reputation of FLL.

The business administered within the RFFs is exposed to the same risks as those that potentially affect
FLL’s ongoing business, most notably investment market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, operational risk,
expense risk, and insurance risk. FLL addresses the management of these risks on the same basis as
its ongoing business and therefore the policies in place for these risk categories also apply to the
management of the RFFs.

Group Risk

The Company recognises that the financial strength and size of the organisation internationally has a
significant beneficial impact on its business and brings with it access to resources and support, such as
expertise and capital. As a subsidiary, however, the Company recognises that ultimately the direction
of its business is at the discretion of its parent, which introduces risks for the Company.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with group companies

“FLL is the principal UK operating subsidiary of Forester Holdings (Europe) Ltd ("FHE"). Related party
transactions arise as follows: .
e FHE incurs substantially all the operating costs for the Company’s UK business and recharges the
appropriate share to FLL for settlement in cash.
e FLL owns the building housing the UK Head Office and charges rent to FHE.
e FHE employs UK Head Office employees and acts as principal employer for the pension scheme
in the UK.
o FHE previously contracted with FLL to provide permanent health insurance for UK employees.
Premiums are no longer paid but claims may be made in respect-of coverage previously provided.

Transaction details were as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Operating costs recharged by FHE (including a charge in respect of 26,436
) : - : 24,179
salaries, pension contributions and other pension costs)
Rent charged to FHE by FLL 369 369
Reassurance premiums payable to Foresters less claim recoveries - 157
Health insurance payment 36 35
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22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Intercompany creditor balances at the year-end were as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Immediate parent company 1,887 6,376
Total 1,887 6,376

All related party transactions have taken place at terms that would exist in arm’s length transactions.
The inter-company creditor balances were unsecured and paid in cash on a quarterly basis.

There were no other loans or guarantees provided by FLL to related parties.
Transactions between the Company and its defined benefit pension scheme is disclosed in Note 6.
Transactions with key management personnel

Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee are deemed to be key management
personnel. Key management personnel compensation during the year was as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Salaries and short-term benefits 1,468 1,416
Post-employment benefits under money purchase scheme 130 124
Other long-term benefits 261 281
Total 1,859 1,821

23 COMMITMENTS
The Compahy had no commitments to make payments as a lessee at the end of 2020 and 2019.

The Company leases out its investment property to its parent company, Forester Holdings (Europe)
Limited. The Company has classified this lease as an operating lease because it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the asset. The following table sets
out the maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be received under the lease agreement:

2020 2019
£°000 £'000
< 1 year . 369 369
1-5 years 1,476 1,476
Over 5 years 830 830
Total undiscounted lease payments 2,675 2,675

The Company had an obligation to make payments under a service contract as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £°000
< 1 year 1,809 1,809
1-5 years ' 7,238 7,238
Over S years - 1,809
Total ‘ 9,047 10,856
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24

CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Amounts expected to be recovered or capable of being settled within and beyond 12 months from the

reporting date were as follows:

2020 2019
i Beyond Within Beyond
Total W';h;:tti 12 Total 12 12
months months months
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
ASSETS
Intangible assets 26,616 2,492 24,124 13,916 2,589 11,327
Investment property 5,250 - 5,250 5,420 - 5,420
Deferred Tax asset 4,784 1,990 2,794 7,438 1,190 6,248
Financial investments 5,128,926 5,128,926 - 4,474,238 4,474,238 -
Insurance and other
receivables 22,313 5,182 17,131 24,343 19,188 5,155
Cash and cash equivalents 48,630 48,630 - 81,028 81,028 -
TOTAL ASSETS 5,236,519 5,187,220 49,299 4,606,383 4,578,233 28,150
2020 _ 2019
e s Beyond Within Beyond
Total W'::)':t:é 12 Total 12 12
months months months
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
LIABILITIES
fgi‘;ﬁggge contract 445,931 41,024 404,907 502,302 55,075 447,227
Investment contract
liabilities:
Unit-linked 4,549,179 4,549,179 - 3,871,045 3,871,045 -
Non-linked 60,164 60,164 - 61,581 61,581 -
Employee benefit
obligation 3,359 1,620 1,739 4,228 1,620 2,608
Deferred tax liability 3,465 977 2,488 5,432 1,684 3,748
Current tax liability 2,140 2,140 - 10,039 10,039 -
Benefits payable 20,333 20,333 - 17,729 17,729 -
Other liabilities 10,323 10,323 - 14,272 14,272 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,094,894 4,685,760 409,134 4,486,628 4,033,045 453,583

25

Impact of Covid-19

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company’s operational response to the Covid-19 pandemic is set out in the Strategic Report.

Since 31 December 2020, the spread of new strains of the coronavirus has led to a further tightening
of restrictions in the UK. However, there have also been positive developments as the country is well-
progressed to meet its vaccination targets. There has been some volatility in the UK and global equity
markets in the first quarter of 2021, however the Company’s assets under management as at 31 March
2021 were largely unchanged from its year end position. Management have determined that the events
after the reporting period do not materially affect the Company’s financial position and results for the

year ended 31 December 2020.
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25 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

In the original Business Plan, management assumption was that there would be a slow return to normal
in 2021. At this point, the duration and extent of the pandemic, as well as the shape of any economic
recovery to follow, remains very unclear. It is not possible to reliably estimate the impact of Covid-19
on the financial position and results of the Company for future periods. However, based on the going
concern assessment set out on Page 8, management believe that the Company can continue as a going
concern for the foreseeable future.

26 ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The ultimate parent undertaking and the undertaking which headed the largest group of undertakings
for which the financial statements are drawn up and of which the Company was a member was The
Independent Order of Foresters, a fraternal benefit society, incorporated in Canada with limited liability,
registered address 789 Don Mills Road, Don Mills, Ontario, M3C 1T9, Canada.

FLL's immediate parent undertaking, Forester Holdings (Europe) Limited, registered address Foresters
House, 2 Cromwell Avenue, Bromley BR2 9BF, United Kingdom, is a wholly owned subsidiary of The
Independent Order of Foresters. Forester Holdings (Europe) Limited (registered number 3013082) is a
company incorporated in England and Wales and is resident for tax purposes in the United Kingdom.
The Company’s registered address is Foresters House, 2 Cromwell Avenue, Bromley BR2 9BF, United
Kingdom
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